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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

May 22, 2015

Honorable Mayor
~ Members of City Councrl
_Treasurer
City of Dunkirk
~Dunkirk, NY 1‘4048

‘ Report on the Fmanmal Statements \

We have audited the accompanying. fmancral statements of the governmental actlvmes the business- type
activities, the aggregate dlscretely presented component units, and each major fund, of ‘the City of ’
Dunkirk, New. York, as.of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the"

- financial statements, WhICh collectrvely comprlse the Crty 5 basm flnancrat statements as ||sted in the table

. of contents.

L Management’s Responsrblllty for the Flnanmal Statements

Management is responS|bIe for-the preparation. and fair presentatron of these- fmancral statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in.the United States of America; this includes

© the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
‘presentation. of flnanC|aI statements that are free from materlal mlsstatement whether due to. fraud or
- error. ,

, Audltors Responsrblllty '

\TOur responsrbrhty is to express oprmons on these financial statements based on our audit, We did not =~

audit the financial statements of the Dunkirk Housing Authorlty, which both is a discretely presented'
component unit and 85.4: percent, 84.5 percent and 87.6 percent, respectively, of the assets; net position -
and revenues of the discretely presented component units of the City of Dunkirk, New York “Those
statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to. us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Dunkirk Housing Authority, is based solely on the
report of the other auditors. 'We, conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United ‘States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained. in
Government - Auditing Standards,. issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtam reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from materlal mlsstatement '

- An aUdIL mvotves performmg procedures to obtaln audit evrdence about he amounts and disclosures in"
~ the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
- assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
In. making, those risk assessments, the: auditor considers - internal control ‘relevant to the “entity’s
~ preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in.order to design audit procedures that are
. appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressrng an opinion on the effectiveness of
‘the entity’s internal control Accordrngly, we express no-such opinion. An audit also rncludes evaluatlng
the appropnateness of accounting -policies used and the reasonablenéss of S|gn|f|cant accounting
“estimates made by management as weII as’ evaluatmg the overall presentatlon of the financial
statements
70 East Main Street / Fredoma, New York 14063 / 716 672 4770 / Fax 716 679 1512 / jma-cpas.com




‘ -We belreve that the audlt evrdence we have obtained is sutﬁcnent and appropnate to provrde a baSIS for o

o ‘our audrt oprnlons
Ce .Oplmons

In our oplnlon based ‘on our audrt and the: report of other audltors the flnanC|a| statements referred to

above - present. fairly,. in ‘all material’ respects, the respective ﬂnanctal position of ‘the" governmental -

- activities; the business- -type actlvmes the aggregate discretely- presented component units .and each-

major fund of the City of Dunkirk, New York; as of December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in

_financial ‘position, and, where applicable, Cash flows. thereof for the year then ended in accordance wrth
‘_accountrng pr|n0|ples generally accepted |n the Unlted States of Amerrca ' :

k Other Matters '

7 ‘7 Requlred Supplementary lnformat/on

Accountlng pnncrples generaIIy accepted in the Umted States of Amenca reqmre that the managements t

~discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedule of funding progress — other
postemployment benefits on pages 4-through 11, 47 through 50 be presented to supplement the basic . -~

financial statements. Such-information; aIthough not a part of the basic financial statements, is required

~ by the. Governmental Accounting: Standards Board, who considers. it to be an essential part of finanaial
reportrng for placmg the basic financial. statements in an appropriate. operational, economic, or historical' o

context. We and other auditors have applied: certain limited procedures to-the required supplementary

~ -information in- accordance with audltlng standards ‘generally accepted in the United States of America,

which consisted: of inquiries of management - about the methods of preparing the mformatlon and

‘comparing the- rnformatlon for consistency with: managements responses to our inquiries, the basic -
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtain. during. our audit of the basic financial statements. -

We ‘do not express an opinion or _provide- any assurance ‘on the information because the Ilmrted,fl

'procedures do not provude us w1th sufflcrent evrdence to express an opmton or provrde any assurance

Other /nformat/on

Our audlt was conducted for the purpose of formrng optmons on the fmanmal statements that collectlvely S

- comprise the City of Dunkirk, New York’s basic financial statements The schedule of expenditures of

federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as requrred by U.S. Office of Management =
- and. Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments ‘and Non Proflt Organ/zatlons and is
- also nota requrred part of the basic ﬂnanCIaI statements - T B '

- ‘The schedule of. expendltures of- federal awards is the respon3|blllty of management and was derlved -
~ from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to. prepare the basic o
 financial statements Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
- of the basic financial statements and certain addltlonal procedures including comparing and reconciling
'such_information. directly to the ‘underlying accountlng and other records used to’ prepare the basic «
- financial ‘statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
~ accordance with alditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
-~ the schedule of expendltures of federal awards rs fatrly stated in all materlal respects m relatron to the :

ba3|c frnancral statements as a whole

"'The accompanymg schedule of expendlrures of New York State Department of Transportauon aSS|stance"'f
as listed in the table of contents is presented for the purpose of additional analysis as required by the -

New York. State Department of Transportation and Drafts Part 43 of the New York. State Codification of - A

. Rules and Regulations, ‘and. is not a required part of the basic financial statements The schedule of
; expendltures of New York State Department of Transportatlon assistance is- the responsibility of
~management ¢ and was derived from- and -relates directly to the ‘underlying accountrng and otherrecords -

" 'used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing

s procedures apphed in the audit .of the basic fmancnal statements' and certain’ addrtlonal procedures

t:j‘-2- :




, ‘mcludmg comparlng and reooncrhng such. mformatlon directly to the underlylng accountlng and other
~ records used to prepare the basic financial statemehts or to the basic financial statements themselves,
.and other addrtronal procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
- States of ‘America. ‘In_our opinion, the. schedule of expendlture of New York State Department of -
~ Transportatron assrstance is falrly stated in aII materlal respects in relatlon to the basrc ﬂnan0|al'

) statements asa whole o

' Other Reportmg Requrred by Government Audltmg Standards

i In accordance W|th GovernmentAud/t/ng Standards we have also issued our report dated May 22, 2015 T

~on our consideration of the City of Dunkirk, New. York’s internal control over frnancral reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulatlons ‘contracts, and grant agreements - and
. other matters ‘The purpose of that report is to descnbe the scope of our testrng of. mternal control over

" financial reporting and compliance and. the results of that- testmg -and not to’ provrde an opinion on internal

control over financial reporting or on compllance That report is an integral part of an audit performed;in
accordance with' Government Audltlng Standards. in oonsrderlng City- of Dunklrk New Yorks mternaI]

‘control over fmancnal reportmg and compllance ‘
'V . ; N N s . o ‘

“Johnson',‘ Macl'(o'wiakf& Assbciates,‘ LLP' \

# &uw up




. CITY OF DUNKIRK NEW YORK L
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2014 S

B 'Thrs drscussron and analy31s of the City of Dunklrk New York’s ﬁnancral performance :

‘provides an overview of-the Crty s financial activities for the year ended December 31,

2014, This document should be read 1 in con_]unctlon wrth the C1ty s fmanmal Statements I

- which begrn on page 12
: -FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

s The General Fund reported a $417 410 budgetary deﬁcrt for the year ended December e

. 31, 2014 as shown on page 47. ThlS amount compares 1o’ a budgetary surplus of

i 7$225 657 for the year ended December 31, 2013.

e ,'The General Fund reported an operatrng deﬁ01t of $529 322 for the current year as
- ‘vcompared to an operatmg surplus of $29 534 for 2013

: e VThe Water Fund had an operatmg deﬁcrt of $225 084 for the current year as_‘ o “

. compared with an operatrng deficit of $153,139 for 2013. The upgrades and repairs

" to the water filtration plant and water mfrastructure mandated by Chautauqua County
" continued throughout 2014 “Water rates were adjusted for 2014 to meet mcreased -
- costs assocrated with '[hlS prOJ ect S S '

e The Wastewater Treatment Fund had an operatmg surplus of $383 067 for 2014 as
Vcompared ‘with an operatlng deﬁcnt of $51 162 for 2013 ERE

e The C1ty s net p051t1on decreased by $385 763 asa result of the act1v1ty for the year |

" ended December 31, 2014 as compared to an increase of approxrmately $l 076, 586 as . i

a result of 2013 act1v1ty

: USING THIS REPORT

. }The annual report cons1sts of a serles of ﬁnan01al statements The statement of net -
- position and the statement of act1v1tles prov1de information regardmg the City as a whole

and present a longer-term view of the City’s ﬁnances ‘Financial statements for each fund

. start on page 14.- For governmental activities, these statements show how- services were
' ﬁnanced in the overall operatron of the Crty n greater deta1l than the C1ty w1de ﬁnanc1al '

L statements ; IRTEE : e




'REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE

“ .TheﬂStatement of Net Position an'd',Statement of Activities. e

 The statement of net position and statement of activities show information about the City =~

‘as a whole. These statements include all assets and liabilities of ‘the City us1ng the

L accrual basis of accountmg which is used by most prlvate ~sector companies. All of the

current year’s revenues and expenses are taken 1nto account regardless of When cash 1s'
k rece1ved or pa1d : ~ : L

- ;These two statements report the C1ty s net posmon and the changes to them The Clty s
net position’ — the difference between assets and. Liabilities — is a way to measure the.
1 City’s financial health, or financial position.- ‘Over time, increasés or decreases in' the
~City’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is 1mprov1ng or ¢
deteriorating.  Other- non-financial factors need to be considered, such as changes in the’f

PR City’s property tax base and the cond1tlon of the Crty s roads and 1nfrastructure toassess. o
~the overall health of the Crty : ~ X ; SR

: "In the statement of net pos1t1on and the statement of act1v1t1es the Clty reports all 1ts c
- basic services as governmental activities. - These services mclude public safety, pubhc\'

/*works economic assistance, health water treatment wastewater treatment economic
development ‘and general administration.- PrOperty taxes,. sales taxes departmcntal;
71ncome and state and federal a1d f1nance most of these act1v1t1es

REPORTING THE CITY’S MOST SIGNIF ICANT FUNDS

o Fund Frnancral Statements ‘

E . Our d1scussmn and analysis of the Crty S maJor ﬁJnds begm on page 14 and prov1de

"‘detail of the C1ty s most: s1gmﬁcant funds on an 1nd1v1dual basis rather than the City
taken as a whole. Some funds are requrred to be established by state or local law or by

' _the nature of the federal and state funding for their operation. - The. City has also

segregated funds to account for their specral purpose Currently the Crty only utrlrzes o 7
‘ govemmental funds . : B :

;GOernM,‘ -

| ‘All ﬁmds of the C1ty are conS1dered govemmental funds Thrs Sectlon focuses on hOW‘ ‘

' revenue flows into and out of these funds and the balance of the funds at year-end which . ‘

. is "available for future spending. - These funds are reported using the modlﬁed accrual -
. basis of accounting which measures . cash and financial assets that can be read1lyﬂ :
, converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view

“of the Crty S general operat1ons and the ba51c services it provides. This 1nformat1on helps

" determine the financial resources that can be spent to finance City programs. The

. relationship between the governmental activities (accrual basis) and the governmental
- funds (mod1ﬁed accrual ba31s) is prov1ded in reconc1l1at10ns on pages 15 and l7

s :




: ,THE CITY AS TRUSTEE

- ,The Clty is the trustee for assets held due to a trust arrangement _ which can be used o
only for the trust beneficiaries. These arnounts are excluded from the C1ty-w1de ﬁnan01a1 - |
~ statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its day to day operations. i
"The City is responsrble for: ensurrng that the assets reported are used for their 1ntended; o

b purpose
| THE CITY AS A WHOLE

The Clty S combrned net posmon decreased to $16 603 m11110n from $16 989 m11hon for

the year ended December 31,2014. This is a ‘result of an operatlonal deficit of $0.386°
~million. ' This- compares to an increase. for the -year ended December 31, 2013 of -
’ approx1mately $1.076 million. - Our discussion and analysis focuses on the net posmon
’ (Table 1) and the changes in net p051t1on (Table 2) of the Crty s governrnental act1V1t1es

Table 1
~Net Position
(In.Thousands)

’Governmenta“l SR " Business - Type . - 'l;otal.Primary .

- Activities . - __Activities’ " - " Government

L .2014 . 2013 - 2014 ~ _ 2013 - . 2014 2013 _

' Assets : S e o LT A T - s
.Current-assets oo - % 15600 $:13,192 § L $ -7 $..15600  $-13,192
Capltal assets . } - o - L. 731,954 291195 - - - - 31,954 29,195

Totalassets SR ... % 41554 $42387 $ - % - . $ 47554 '$ 42387 .

“Llabllmes \ e e T U T P N
Currentllabllltles C % 21169 $ 16719 $ - - % - $ 21,169  $ 16,719 -
Long-term portion ofobhgatlons oo 8482 8679 - - . - o - 8482 8,679

Total liabilities T $. 99651 $25398 $  -. $ - $ 29651 $ 25398

: Deferred lnﬂows of Resources - o e ) . I ,

Unavailable revenue - property taxitems ~~ $ 1300~ $° - . § - - § - $ 1300 $. -°
Total deferred inflows of resources $ ©1300 $ - % -+ $ - % . 1300 $ -

NetPosmon ‘ SR A N ST s S

* Net Investment in capltal assets -~ . $ 10,419 - $.11310 “$ . -°  $ - $. 10419 $ 11,310
' Restncted B ST 1,043 2109 -0 4943 2,109
Unrestrlcted o , S a4241- . 3570 - . - .. 4241 - 35710

Total netposmon ... -$ 16603 $16989 $ - 0§ - '$ 16603 $ 16989




. ‘Revenues ‘
* Program revenues o
~ Charges for services - -
Operating grants and contnbutrons
~ Capital grants and contnbutlons
: General revenues
' Property taxes -
Sales tax
. PILOT payments
“~Investment earnlngs
- Mrscellaneous

Total revenues

,Program ex’pens'es“ ‘

- Council

- "Mayor

. Financial

. Staff: RS
~ Shared services -

. Special items
- Police department
- Fire department

Other public safety

«\Transportatron -

“Economic assistance: and opportumty ‘ R

Culture and recreatron
- Watertreatment
~ Wastewater treatment
Home and- communrty service
, lnterest on long- term debt ‘

Total expenses

: ‘Increa‘se (decrea’se)’in net position -

Table 2.
Changes in Net Position -
(In. Thousands)

Total Primary

Governmental
" -Goverriment ..

: ~Business - Type -
© Activities |

. Activities

2014 .

2013 2014 _ 2013 _ _ 2014 2013

B

a 3,423

‘$ 7618 -
903
612

' 7578
1,820
409

$7618 $ - § -
903 -

7,578
1,820
400

4,837 4,831
2,404 2,333
2,860 - 2,957
130
3423 - 2,767

4831 - - -

2333 - -
2,957 - S
- 102 - -
2,767 - - -

4,837
2,404
2,860
130

23 461

3271

166

2866

22123 - - 23461 22123}-'

o - T T FTON - | EER -
182 - . 16 - - 162
500 .= 1526 500 -
888 - - 854 . 888
740 - - - 7320 740
966 - - . - 1,020
5134 0 - - 5410
© 3348 - - 3271
268 . 0288 - - 268
2564 . 1469 . - - - 2564 - 1469
- B8 55 - - .58 .. B5_
© 935 - 953 - - o< 935 - 953
2,275 2,350 - e 2275
2686 . - . - . 2866
1,083 - - . 12405
384 - - 436,

526
854
S o732
1,020

5410 5134

1,063
384

2,405
436

23,847

21047

210470 o . 23,847

§  (386)

51076 8 - 8 - § (388 107

102

. 966

3,348
288 .

2350
2686 .




' Table 3 presents the cost of the Clty S ﬁve largest governmental programs: pohce' }
}fdepartment fire department transportatron ‘water treatment and wastewater treatment as -

well as the net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activities). The net cost =
'shows the ﬁnal cost pald by the C1ty S- taxpayers and other general revenue sources of -

h veach of these functrons

, Tab1e3 -
Governmental Actrvrtres
(In Thousands)
k Total Cost of Services . Net Cost of Services
2014 2013 2014 2013
- Police department »$ '5410 $ 5134 $ 4979 $ 4751'
- Fire department 3272_;_ 13,348 . 3268 3,348
- Transportation’' 2,564 1,469 1911 413
- Water treatment ©. 2,275 2350 . (372) (307)
' Wastewater treatment 2,866 .~ 2.686- - (886) _(1.053)
“Totals $16387 $14987 = § 8900  § 7,152

‘ :'THE CITY’S FUNDS

B ‘ General Governmental Functrons

As the Clty completed the year its' governmental funds (as presented on page 14) o
','reported a combined fund deficit of $6.09 million Wthh reflects an decrease of $3.26
~ million from last year’s total of $2.83 mrlhon During. 2014,  the C1ty S capltal -
L ‘expend1tures exoeed 1ts related revenues by approx1mate1y $2. 82 m1lhon s




GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The 31gn1ﬁcant variances between the orrglnally adopted budgets for 2014 and 2013 and' , :
the ﬁnal budget are detarled as follows B -

7 "720‘1‘4, S ’A 2013
V«O‘r‘i‘ginalibudget‘_ | s ‘\1‘5}34’7.7‘60__ $ 15,002, 713" B
 Additional aipp_'rdp‘riatiohs{, L Ry S amant
fEneumbrance car‘{ryﬁovern - - ‘186,,501;' ‘3’507439 -
’F'inal;B‘udget“ R s ‘V15,’534,2e’1‘[*s ‘15,‘620,‘52"’3_ S

O “"CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION -

‘ 'Capltal Asset

L At December 31 2014 the City had $31 94 million (net of accumulated deprematron) in 7““' S
S a broad range of cap1tal assets including land buildings, water mains, sewer lines, roads, "

sidewalks, machmery and equrpment Thrs represents a net increase of approxrmately B
: '$2 759 mllhon for the year : L ,

o Tabled o
Cap|tal Assets at Year—End (Net of Deprematlon)
' (In Thousands) L

- Governmental - - Business.- Type = Total Prlmary

Activities: - - Activities _____ Government -
2014 o, 20130 2014 . 2013 - 2014 2013
~ Land and-improvements B $ 151 $ 151 8 - % - $ 151 § 151 ‘
" Construction in progress 26,018 - 22540 - - - - 26,018 ,‘22,540—
" Infrastructure - - © 34,704 ,3"4,7'Q4 L= - 34,704 34704
' Buildings and |mprovements C 12420 0 12417 - - 12,4200 0 12417
- “Machinery and equment 16,848 16,786 .~ . -. - .. 16,848 - 16,786
. Accumulated depre0|at|on . (58,187) (57,403) = - - (8,187) - (57403)
¢ Total [ $ 31954 $ 29195 § - $ - . $ 31,054 $ 29,195 -
-9




“Debt

5At year end the Crty had $21 536 mrllron in bonds and notes outstandrng as- compared to I

$17.885 million outstandmg at December 31, 2013 See Note 7 on pages 38 through 43
- for add1t1onal detalls) ‘ : ‘

| " Table5 i
- Outstandlng Debt atYear—end oo
‘ (In Thousands) .

Governmehtal “ ‘Business- Type - Total Primary |

Activities - -~ Activities _ ' Government
| 2014 . 2013 _ _ 2014 _ _ 2013 _ _ 2014 2013 _
B Generallobligatio’n bonds $ 4870 $ 518 $ - § - 3 \4870 ‘$"5,1:3"5 o
Bond anhcupatlon notes o $162666‘ '*$12"7OO ‘$‘ S f,'$' F $ 18, 666 $12,70ij o

- /‘ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

. The City’s elected and appomted ofﬁcrals consrdered many factors When settmg the_;'

o fiscal- -year 2015 budget tax rates, and fees that will be charged for activities. One of

_ these factors is the economy. - Full valua‘non of property in the C1ty amounted to $610.1
~ million for 2014. The taxable valuatlon remarned relatlvely constant at approxrmately'
_'$279 6 mllhon for 2014. R ! "= ‘

: The City, along with many other muni‘Cipalitie:s is faced with many mandatory increases

- beyond the City’s control. There i is a mandatory i 1norease in the pension fund med1cal

~and liability insurance and worker’s compensatron rangrng in double digits. The Cityis -

also faced Wrth the challenge of declining revenues (caused prrmarrly by a decrease in.
o customer usage) in the General Water Funds' and Wastewater Treatment F unds o :

/These current mdlcators are consistent w1th those we used When adoptlng the General L

o Fund budget for 2015. In developrng the 2015 General Fund budget the C1ty drd not o
approprrate any. amount from the tax stabrllzanon reserve ‘ o : -

'The C1ty s general fund balance is" not expected to decrease by the close of 2015 :

However, due to economic conditions and anticipated revenues not realized, the City may R

~ realize a decrease in the general fund balance at year end. Nonetheless ‘the -City’s
- unreserved fund balance- remains pos1t1ve we maintain healthy ‘bond ratlngs (A+ from
| - Standard & Poor s) and the C1ty does not antrcrpate cash ﬂow problems in 2015 '

. The C1ty mcreased water rates effectrve with the ﬁrst quarterly brllmg of 2014 and also, -

the first quarter billing of 2015 to meet prrncrpal and 1nterest expenses assocrated Wrth the -
: '\mandated water ﬁltratron system upgrade : S

‘:;'10*1' |




. CONTACTING TI-IE CITY’S FINAN CIAL MANAGEMENT

' . ’ThlS ﬁnanelal report is des1gned to prov1de our crtlzens taxpayers customers 1nvestors S
~and creditors with a general overview of the city’s - -finances and to show the city’s

yaccountablhty for the money it receives. If you have any questions or need additional -
_information, contact Mark A. Woods, City Treasurer, City Hall 342 Central Avenue i '
" Dunkirk, New York 14048 Phone (716) 366 9863. . ' e o

| ‘:7'11.'7 o \I




86.°0v8°9

% 6zzeLViv

- a —

§ ezzeLYLy

o e - siEssvviolL

mmm.RQm _,

S VIOVSETLE

— %i9%%1c

'S}9SSE JUSLINOUOU ()0

:mo s E
8G2°09L°1
09/' NE«S,\,

808'/52'1

am@ 381 wmva

816'/¥8°9)
6L1'02y'e)
120'902've

0 £8Z'8l0'oT
,,_mmr_,rmr

T s

- sle'p8el
- eliozr'zh

R Y10k (A2
ST '£82'810'9¢

B - 1%

~ uoneosudap paje|nWNooy -
Juswdinbs pue Asuiyoepy -
mEme>an_ pue mm:_u__:m_. :
ainonyselyu
mmo._mo._a Ul UoIjoNnJ}suos)-
mEmEo>9_o_E_ pue pue]
. LT mwwmwm [exden
\ m._.m_wwd. .rzmw_m_:ozoz

EorElTL

© S197eSSh

S19%2SSh

: ;wwomwm,‘ucob..._o ‘_Eo 1

- e8vE
19Z'pe
Loz'sy

6s6's

68L'ThY
- 0LLYYY

.S
jusuodwod

SO ”.«‘Nwo“omm;, |
- eziole

£99°€06' r

IR AR

. 98T's0g'LL

- zooeet
- ezi'ale
- /9906t

- Ligsor

©$ 982'505'Ll

| & «ww;:,:wo(
oa&.wmwc_w:m

, mw;.>;o,< y

sjesse 1yl
‘ L - o ~ sasuadxa piedeid
L . suswuwienob isyio woy ang
SR B ) - spuny Ateronpy wouy o_._o‘
- o_nmzoo& SJUNODOY
¥ ‘ 'soxe]
, _ o Amm_n;om__ooc: pojew}se Joj
o ,,mwocm>>o__m u,o m_n_mo__%m alaym 65 so|qeAledsy
s SjUBWISaAU|

o w 4 R mEm_mz:Uw useo pue yseg:

I S mhmwmdﬁzumm_:o

SIEssV.

hz,m_s_zmm>oo >m<_>__mn_

_my:wEEgoo

 ploz‘le¥3ENI0IA |
- NOILISOd 13N'40 INIWILVLS

o RMOAMANSMINNGH0 ALD



o S AR
w“, v, .,.,,, ,, mEmE&Ew _w_ucmcco«mouo: mmw

86L0v89 ¢ eccelyly § - § eczewy § . NOILISOd L3N ANV S30HNOST 40
L P : R T .. sMOTANI 0I¥¥343d SAILMIEVIT TVLOL

'emve osy'eogor - A OSFE0SSL N M T ‘zoEw,on_,Ez,._Eo,h

8/9'899°  © S00WCV - moo :&v LT C e e U - SR R nﬁo_ﬁo_cz
o O—‘w LGl SR R S T ,‘,‘ c K S o : , T o wm._:u_UCOQXQG‘_DwDM_
ST . oes'eyl. s S omm ‘el N . e R 7. seoUelquinoul
- .. besgey - ves'sey I . sjuswenoidwijesns
= i T opee'elg O 45 15 E e T S - seueq sakodwi3
N - =T <1 AR T R 8oTweY IR I - uonezijqeys xe[ -
R COSLLLLE LR CoUGLME R EmEa_:g leydes

o osee'/zo's. . plo'siyolL R - oplesipoL S T wyommm _E_amo ul EmEo«mgc:mz

T T T T e T e R e zo_:won:mz

-~ Tewooer - Teyooew . - s3odWnosM 40 m>>o._u_z_ oummm"m_o ._Soh

- T . N@V.o;om.,r_,(;, : — . Zovooet — FR - .;wEotxﬂ‘\»tmaoi.-‘o::gﬁ ‘m_gm__m_>m,c3‘
. ; : ; o L T e e T w.,, - ,_,mm_u,w_DOmmm\n,_o SMOT4NI a3¥¥343a -

‘Si6eee  Z0gslSee . -, IOSSIS6T ... . ..o Q.mm_.t,._‘_qu_‘._ vi0L

., lec'igl . 1 08S'L8Y'8 - R ; ,,._\Omwwk_hm..v.mﬂ. T .. wco_«mm:no E\_ﬁ-mcoCo uolpod pcm::ocoz v
Lo PRI R Yo g me.__ms._kzmmm:ozoZ

: .YE.moN ..,.Nw.hwmo.ﬁw, EEE o ,..,“/Nmm_mmo.,rmpﬂ,w R SRR . mm_t_‘_nm_:cot:o _Eo._.

- ¥08°0C © - ..000G9S .. T ... .. .000'69S S T AP mco;mm__o_o ctmﬁmco_ho uonpod Em::o
- BBBYS .. R S I S o . . : . - ‘®nusAei pallels.

SR - 000'999'0L- - ... 0009990} L e T e m_nm>ma sejou co;ma_o;cm puog
00z'99" . - ‘-skgwLOL. - - s Glg'elol . e D T T mEmEEw>om 1ayjo oyenq

- , 860'81C ° ST ose0'8lT o R m_ngma «mm:m«c_ paniooy

9oe'sL - - - p8ellse - = o ooopeellse . T N P 2R - “seniiqel peniooy

o SLEVY ¢ .oeo'sogz'T ¢ - o ¢-oeo’s0gT ¢ oo o elqehed sjunodoy
N UL T e e T S S T LT e e e wm__:.__ms._pzmmm:u

T T R I R AT URRER , zoEwon_Ezoz<me.__m<_._. I
. C o smon - . Te’L o m0_~_>:o< . sepAmdY - ; , o , Lo
Em:onEoo L T wab.wmo:_m:m_ _S:wEEmSow‘“ o T o N ST

T hzmﬁzmm>ow>m<_>__mn_ e T S R A CE PEPEII EER




. . R . siuswajes _w_omhc_._ 0} sajou 838 : . :
n«m.té_m . % oov'cog'el $ < $ - 09¥'c09'9L $- ) ’ " Buipus - NOILISOd 13N
Nmo muon e €22°686'91 £22'686'9) - P . . m::::man ZO_.:wOn_ ._.mz , I C . o
68 08s) (s9s's8e) ‘ (£9.'s8¢) 8 BUU mmcmco :
vvm.v: zZV'pSse'EL T o G zzl'vse'el _siajsuel) pue swsy _m_omaw .mw:cw>9‘_.ﬂmcmm [e10) ‘ i . i
0%y T T T T = s « o spsse feydes 1o ojes uo uieg - .
98/ gLi'ezy'e L : Too.ell'ezy'e SRR ) o .. . snosug|eosin ' -
- , - . LI - S o mco_ﬁm__no uo wnjwaig . B B
.. BOL'L . ovL'oel . - o ovi'ogk . :sBuuses usuiseaul -
000'0L. . - R s : - mEm._mo._a oyoads 8 pajolsal jou suonnquIUoo, pue sjuBIE) -
-000/6EL - ' T < - MIoA MON SUUNQ Jo Ao woly swhed . - R
s .. £sg'esg’c - £5G'658'C ) ) © sjuswded 1O, - o
- pegleor'T o= R 53 o) Ar AN IR v N . soxe}.soles - -
R Liy'Ie8y - - Liy'LeR'y T e L mmxﬂémaen_ ; : . :
] . S . - s SRR R : S saxe] L
. N ) R - mm:cw>9 _Emcmo
(ewgiegd. - I <o 809°28L . § ¥20%TES. . § BWYVLIL a 3« mm:N $ BT Muﬂ_:i:u:&Eoo rejol
-(ggo'ses) . - ST - 909281 - LIEEIS - BLT90L - yovm Nvm b 3_553 mc_m:oz upung .
legzz'yy - Coe - - - L PR . eTTL >ocmm< EwEuo_m>mo_ 11SNPU| SBUNG Jo Ao
(e0s'gle) ~ - - e - N % Ip0'8L s oli'e’ $ eTL'she ' ~ Areigr 9314 >ipung
- Lo , o S A o - spun Ew:anoo
et (seg’sc0vl). - - (s88'6071) i 6z8'80V. - $ 98v'0z8'} $ ovi'8ls’. § ozevEer . § . U e Juowussnob-Arewnd fejo -
- - - - - - - T _sspiapoe sdfy-sssuisng [ejoL
LI ~ (ssg'sgo’rl) - - - - . (ssg'seo'vl) . ezs'BOv 99v'028'} - eyi'els'L 9Ze'LV8'ET SapIAoe [ejUBLUISA0G ) L
= .  .(co9cep) T (CEEN] R - - T 889Ger . . - SRR 192p uise}-Buo| uo Jsaselu|
- . (ses'Ly9) RS ~ o (889'1p9)  TL9'99e 0€E'2€9 - 69e'6G. S6L'S0V'T Coo T T .- eoWes Aiunwiulod pue BuioH
R - VA - B A v 182'G88 - CUTO - e6Lllsl'e 8L0'998'c . . - R R 1UaLUIBaI} I9)EMBISEAN
- o 099°LLE - 099'LLE TR, R - -oeBg'op9T - L eeBvlTT - BT L - juswieal) JajepN
- : (evg'ges) o - (ev8'sel) S . T6L'06 060:90L-". .- -GZL'GEB : e o Uoyeasdal pue aning -
B (015 <) N T (oeb'pg) - S T e . 005'e . 0E6'LS T R z_czto%o pue soue)sisse 9lliouoo]
- B - (peL'oke"). T - - Av6L'016'L) S ,  £/2'089 L ogvlT L ..ogie'ees'z - o ST -, uoeyodsuesy’
- o oo lewLeey) o - , (evs'ecl) - Lo z50peL: CobeL'L9T -, ) R - Aeges ongnd o
- : - (geg'L0z'e) Lo (seg'L9T'E) - 000 - : . Geg'LLT'e I S Lo yusuwiyedsp ey
AT ~(ezs'sLey) - “(ezs'8.46') SRESEEEE omv bey ol - 1 GTO'0IP'S L .o : o juswpedap aojfod
- N ~(gzp'0z0’)) e (s.v'020’L) o , - Sp'0ZO'L - o - o . swajl epads
- (skzie). s (L51'zLY) VAR AAZ mtn €98°0L 90v'ZEL - . ) , - S9JMIBS paleys
- (vseioss) - (¥89'052) g 6EL'SOL £2g'ess. S , s RS
- - (ogtoze) - 0 - (oeL'9z8) - J - - 0E1'92G - PR e [ejoueul
= (zed'sen). Tt - . {z89'sol)- - _ - - - .. zeo'gel - ‘ o ‘ -, Jokew .
cee - 2e (4209 - 8 % (£42'09) & $ - $ - <80 222'08 % flounoy -
- ; L L ] . : o - . 108, [BJUSLLUISA0D
: ) SRR S “juswwiznob Arewy
R L A T . . ) L e e - w_>_<~_wom&mzo_._.oz:u
Siun TeloL - - . SSmAndY - SONIANOY | SUoRNgIuosy sSuonpnqUucy - - e EEHIELYE] B ‘ ! R
jusuodwon N adfj-sseuisng |ejusLILIBA0D pue SUEIY v:u.,mu:‘u‘_w‘ 10 mwm._w.._o B G S A o
) : "LNSIWNYIA0D AHVIAIL - - lenden - Bupesado : . : :
R - ~ NOILISOd 13N NISIONVHD - 7 - SANNINTE WVHD0Hd ’ ’ : . )
.0 0T aNy anNaIARY (ISNIdxa) 1EN : . . , . L ,
Som 1€ ¥3EWIo3a nmozm HvIA' :
’ $3ULIAILOY 4O LNIWILVLS - -
: o : . MHOA M3AN MUNNQG H0 ALID - ; . -
PN €



© . CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK

BALANCE SHEET

.« GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,.2014’

ASSETS -
. Ca:é.hvand cash equivalents -
Receivables, net .. . -
" Taxes ' - '

Accounts receivable
.Due frorri-other governments
"Due from other funds

_TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES: .
" - Accounts payable
" Accrued liabilities .
" Due to other governments . -
. Due to other funds o
'Bond-anticipation, notes payable
Deferred reveriue,

U foTALLIABILITIES

-FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for: .
- Tax stabilization
Encumbrances
- Assigned for; .
" Capital equipment - -
Street improvernents
7 _ Employee benefits
* :Encumbrances | -
Vljn,assigned: S
‘Unassigned

~ TOTAL FUND BALANCES

' TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Genefall ' Water Treatment _ - Grant Projects . -~ . Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund . Funds
§ . 5220501 § - 87,595 5 637,841 “I s 5569349 § 11505286
469,511 D T TR 469,511
561143 . 633,039 700,485 . . - - - 1,903,667 - -
921,785, ..o - - S 75,314 332,923 . 1,330,022
4132277 . 355691 - 660,187 - . 745974 5,894,129

" Wastewater

Special

Capital

Total

$ 11,305217

$ 1,076,325 §

2007513 §

75314 § ' 6,638,246

$ 21,402,615

8 1867471

$ 146316 $

192,508

2,085

$. 2,208,030 -

270,753 - 53,395 33,236 - 357,384
Cq079.215 . i L T T 1,079,215
1,109,116 1,759,312 © - 1,846,403 75314 787,865 * 5,578,000
P EIUERE A C- - 16,666,000 . 16,666,000
1,302,198 - - - L 1,302,198
5628463 - 1959,023 2072147 75314 __ 17455890 27,190,827
484,268 - - S - 484,268
- 6,009 " 70,005 - - 76,014
Coanats - . - - Camas -
428,534 - - - : 428,534
516,334 - : - : A 516,334
67,576 - - R - 67,576
3,808,937 ' ~(888.707) .- “(134,639) - - (10817.644) (8,082,053) -
5,676,764 ' (882,698) (64634) - - . (10,817,644 (6,088,212)

$ 11,305,217

$ 1076325 §

2,007,513 '$ 75314 $ - 6,638,246

.

See nble; to ﬁnénﬁial stétemenls. -

“14-

$ . 21,102,615
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CITY OF DUNKIRK NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF:- REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
' YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2014

' REVENUES: .

- Real property taxes .
_Sales tax .
Property tax items

'+ Non-property tax items . -

Departmental i income

Shared services

Use of money and property . -
Licenses and permits .

Fines and forfeitures

. Sale of property and compensatlon for loss

‘Miscellaneous
State aid
Federal aid -

Totél' reveriues’

) EXPENDITURES

Current:
*Council .
" Mayor -
‘Financial
Staff :
‘Shiared services
- Special items o
Police department
Fire department - .
Other publi¢ safety -
Transportation-. -
Economic assistance and: opportunlty
* Culture and recreation .
"Home.and commumty service
Employee benefts ’
Debt service:
. Pnncxpal
Interest
~ Capital outlay

- Total expenditufes E

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES -
,ovER EXPENDITURES . ,

. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in .. .

- Transfers out .
BANs redeemed from approprlatlons

‘ Total other ﬁnancing solirces (u;es)/ '

~ NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -

" FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - beginning

* FUND BALANGES (DEFICIT) - ending -/ -

 See notes to financial statements.
-16- -

. - ‘Wastewater ‘Special = Capital TOTAL .
- General . Water" - " Treatment - "'—"G\rant Projects . Governmental
" Fund . Fund .~ ~Fund '~ < Fund . ' Fund o Funds
$ 4837477 8 . - § S - s . s agam
2,403,834 T e o 2,403,834
2885118 . . o oowo o T 2885118 L
. 306,928 . B T 2 D P PR 306,928
1634279 2946592 . 3931272 Lol . 8,512,143 - .
515852 - - .o . . B1sgs2
58,804 . .. = - : Lo - 128,361 187,165
. 36,919 - : L e e T 36,919
129,927 -~ - ©120827 .- R :. 250,454
10,670 - - 2,547 2,028 T - Ce 15,245
708,264 48,906 67647 . - 4,578 829,395
2303899 . - . ..o 291683 2,595,582
74928 fe - 837,330 - o - 712,258
“15,906,899 2,998,045 4121474 637,330 424,622 24,088,370
B £ R T 38473
SO0 TT e s N N 103,717
S 349073 1L T ’ - | 349,073
546,763 " - e S - 546,763
507,133 - e T : - .. 597,133 .
236,024 - 393576 390875 R 1,020,475
34201910 . < T - 3,420,191
‘ 2070308 o~ - o e -2,070,308
201,544 B L R Se 201,544
2,018,670 - R O 2,018670 .
S s0218 7 S e e e . -50218. .
.- . 658,085 . - D TR 658,085 "~ -
1479319~ 1816380 2424054 707,700 . - 6,427,453
4589335 < . 550649 533688 e - 5,673,672
60.000 264,000 225000 . 549,000
17,688 27,925 16479 - - 170,599 . 381,002
e e 3,477,957 13,477,957
_ 16,436,221 _ 3,062,530 _ . 3,738,407 707,700 . _ 3,648,556 . 27583414
(529,322) (54,485) - 383.067 _ . (70,370) _ (3,223,934) ___ (3.495,044)
ST S . 170889 170599
- (70599 . L (170,599) -
- ‘ R S S _ 234,000 234,000
. (70889) ..U 404898 $ 234,000
(520,322)  (225,084). 383,067 © . - (70370)  (2,819,335) . (3,261,044)
6,206,086 | (657,614) _  (447,701) 70,370 _ (7,998,309) - (2,827,168) °
$ 5676764 § - (882,698) $  (64,634) $ . . -  $ (10,817,644) $. - (6,088,212) -
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CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEWYORK

: BALANCE SHEET
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

' DECEMBER 31, 72014_ |

ASSETS

: ‘CURRENT ASSETS

Total current assets R

NONCU RRENT ASSETS

Total noncurrent assets -

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

_"J'CURRENT LIABILITIES e
T Total current Ilabllltles

| 'NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

N Total Iong-term IlabIIItlesI

, ‘»TOTALV'LIABILITIES *

B NET POSIT!ON

LT 'VTOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND o

NET POSITION

' See notestoﬂnancnal statements =
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Business-Type

. Activities
Enterprlse Funds
Total :




’ . cIy OF DUNKIRK NEWYORK ‘ ;
STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
RN PROPRIETARY FUNDS T .
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2014

Business Type o
Actlvmes

‘ Enterprlse Funds

Total o

S OPERATING REVENUES

: Totaloperatmgrevenues L $ R T

. ‘."OPERATING EXPENSES

Total operatlng expenses o B - 7* RS S

aOPERATING INCOME. e R D S

o NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

~Total nonoperatlng revenues (expenses) o

 TOTALNET POSITION - beginning -~~~ =

~ TOTALNETPOSITION -ending . $ -

: See notes to fmancxal statements. i
-19 - o




_CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK
'STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
_ PROPRIETARY FUNDS -
'YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

CASI-I FLéWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net cash prowded by operatmg actlwtles ]‘
 CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

N‘et:c‘ayshr prowded by_nqncyapltal ‘flynancmg actw;tnes .

" Business-Type

Activities .

_ Enterprise Funds

;_’; Lo,t—aIU' '

. 'CASH\‘FLVOWS FRO"M VCAPITAL,AN\IjREI_ATI’ED FINANCING AC_TI‘\:/ITIE‘S:' R IR

Net cash provuded by capltal and related fmancmg actlwtles .

o CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

: " Net cash prowded by _mve_stl‘nrg actlwtles i

 NETINGREASE IN CASH

 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS;
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEI\ITS ‘7 b’v.f—.'ginn‘i‘ngj . |
CASH AND t;A'sH ,, E’QUIVA/L\EN'II'S“ - ending
| . Reconcmatu;n of operatmg mcovme to net cash prowded
by operatmg activities: : :
Opefatmg mcbmé |

) NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See notes.to flnanC|aI statements. '
: ~-20-, ) o




CITY OF DUNKIRK NEW YORK

STATEIVIENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

'FIDUCIARY FUNDS'
'DECEMBER 31, 2014

- Funds

ASSETS
,‘ ‘CURRENT ASSETS

Otherassets =~ . 140213 -

o Trust
o LFunds"f B

Cash and cash equwal‘ents,i‘ . $ 303,301 5 931 36

‘ Total

396,437

140,213

Due from other funds e S T . 809

_TOTALASSETS ~ $ 444323 %

LIABILITIES o

’..CURRENTLIABILITIES L T e
AccowﬂspayaMe ... % 133385 $%

93,136

537,459

133,385
316,938

o ,Duetocﬁherfunds f( . __ 310,938 _

6,000

6000

TOTAL LIABILITIES . 44433

NET POSITION

87,136

87136

| ,NétpoﬁhqnhekinnﬂuspI ff!r* "':"'1 flIvL IQ “_

87,136

87,136

© TOTALNETPOSITION -

93,136

537,459

~ TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NETPOSITION ~ § 444323 §

See notes to fmanctal statements
' 21 -




~ CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
~ FIDUCIARY FUNDS

~ YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 |

_ ADDITIONS
| Investment'e‘ar;nih\gs"‘f‘ "

~ TOTAL ADDITIONS

;bEDUCTlost |

Ca Transfer to General Fund for

Culture and recrea’uon expendltures L i

E :"iTOTALD‘EDUCT‘lONS“' o

| CHANGE IN NET POSITION

. ,NET'POSI“TIO'N‘:HEL'DFIN"TRU‘ST!" o

BEGINNING OF YEAR

END OF YEAR

’ See notestoﬂnancnalstatements 7
22~ : ‘

 Trust ; o
Funds

o 85 |

55

s7081

87136




: C|TY10F DUNKIRK, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

)
A

See notesktko’ﬁnanclal stét‘ementsu
-23.-0 0

N

COMPONENT UNITS
DECEMBER 31, 2014
_ ; _ Cityof Dunkirk . City of Dunkirk
Dunkirk =~ Dunkirk . Urban = - . Industrial
. Free ‘Housing Renewal . Development. - c
Library - Authority Agency - Agency . Total . -
ASSETS T , T SO I :
CURRENTASSETS , Co . T ;: : o ’
’Cash and-cash equwalents 248,327 % 378,580 - e 17,863 -$ = 644,770
Irivestments . ' S 442,789 - L - 442,789
* . Accounts receivable . - 8959 - 8,959 -
Due from othergovemments ; o . 45201 - 45,201 o
Prepaid expenses . . : - 34,261 - - - 34,261
B Other assets * 15,064 - . 22419 - 137,483
Tota current assets 263391 . 932209 17,863 1213463 =
NONCURRENT ASSETS ]

: Capltal assets:. . R
Land and improvements - , I - 1,257,808 - - 1,257,808
Buildings and improvements 829,930 . 13912830 - 14,742,760
- Machinery and equipment - - 217985 0 942773 - i 1,160,758 .-

: Accumulated depr,'eciation ‘ _(327,708) 1 (11,206,283) - (11,533,991) - .
. Total noncurrent assels 720207 . 4907428 C 5,627,335
o TOTAL ASSETS. 983,598 § - 5,839,337 $. 17863 § 6,840,798
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION e
. _"CURRENT LIABILITIES S o o —
- Accounts payable - $ 44375 $ - % 44375

- Dueto other govemments - .. ¢7..66,200 - - 66,200 -

. Deferred revenue ‘ - . 'B4g999 - p . 54,999

- Other current liabilities . - ‘ o= 19366, 0 - - 19,366

o Current portion of long-term obhgatlons ‘ o= .. 20804 - 20 804‘
Total current fblties L 208744 - 05744
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES: . - S A S
Noncurrent portlon of Iong-term obligations . - e 187231 - 187,231 .
TOTAL LIABILITlES - 392975 - 392975
NETPOSITION : S ST T
Net Investement in cap|ta| assets 720,207 4,907,128 - 5,627,335
. Restricted : 151,810 . . 0 T - 151,810 -
B _L‘Jnrestrlcted 111,581 : 539,234 . . \ 17,863 668 678‘
TOTAL NET POSITION 983,598 br 5,446,362 R 17863 - - 6 447 823
H.TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 983598 $ 5839337 $ 17883 § 6,840,798
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© CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW-YORK
_ STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

COMPONENT UNITS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

 YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2014

© Business-type Activities -

Dunkirk -

. : S o . . . See notes to flnanclal statements
: B . . : (
' : . L o . -25-

s - City of - City.-of Dunkirk
‘ a . Urban . Dunkirk Industrial
e T e - ' Renewal ' " Housing ... ' Development Lo
B ! ‘ "+ - Agency Authority | Agency - ~ Total
' CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ] SR : Lo R -
Receipts from charges and fees [ . : S $ T $ . 702017 § ,1-8-030, $ 720'0,47' :
‘Receipts from operating'grants -~ = " S - e 412,898 - 412,898
Payments to suppliers. -~ . L Ll R S - ' (625,917) (1,216) (627,133)
Payments from other governments R " ) I ; 1,333 - 11333
rF‘ayments toemployees . - - - o o ‘ [ - (640,675) - (640,675)" -
Otherrecelpts T coet P S - 16,164 - ~ 16,164
SR Netcash prowded (used) by operatmg actlvmes e ;‘(134,'180) 16,814 ‘ .(117,368)
CASH FLows FROM N‘chAPlT_AL FINA'VNC‘IN‘G ACTIVITIES:‘~ L - - -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES o S
-Capital grants received ~ L o e - 187,608’ - 187,608
ACqmsltlon and modermzatlon of capltal assets o '. S IR -o- (225,029) - . (225,029)
-Mold remedjation” . W e v - S E . - NEEE
Proceeds from dlsposmon of assets : R e - 450" - - 450
Net cash used by capltal and related fi fnancmg actlvmes o e » (36,971) AR - . (‘35,‘971)> '
. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES . _ _ e Lo R
Proceeds from sale of Investments . : - : ) . -~ (930) - - (930)
: Interestmcome received - - oo T ‘ L - ot - 1,141
Net cash prov:ded by |nvestlng actIVItles Sl . i - i 211 - 211 .
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) N CASHAND CASH, EQUIVALENTS CT (170,940) 16814~ (164126)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS “beginning B o w0 549520 _ . 1049° . 550569
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -ending, co . ¢ - s 378580 § 17863 § 396443
' ‘Reconclllanon of operatlng income to net cash provgded (used) -
o by operatmg activities: - i
 Operating income. sy T $ . - % (722690) § (1216) 5 . (723,906) -
Adjustment to reconcile operating i |ncome to net cash prowded (used) oot ' R ’ o
by operating activities: - . S ) o . L
. Depreciation - - . - : S PR T - ~607v321 ‘ - 607,321 .
'Change in assets and liabilities: B o . e R
. Accounts receivable- ' : _ o - ) 10156 18,030 28,186
* ' Due from other governments . . L L : ‘ R . o (40 885) - (40,885)
Prépaidexpenses . oo oo T . S - . (2.554) ' - (2.554)
+ Accourits payable: © . ...~ S e E ‘ - 18,928 ' B 18928
Other current liabilities =~ o B AL E R - (4,456) - ' {4,456)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES s - % (134480) $- 16,814 $ (117,366)




| CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK =
~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 =

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

~ The basic f|nan0|al statements of the City of Dunkrrk New York (the City)- have been prepared in conformrty with -~
‘generally ‘accepted accountrng principles (GAAP) as applred to-government units. The Governmental. Accounting- -~

o Standards :Board (GASB) is' the. accepted standard-setting body for- establrshrng governmental accountlng -and
kflnancral reportlng prlncrples The more srgnrfrcant of the City's acccuntlng polrcres are descnbed below

= A Regortrng Entlty -
S ~Subject to the New York State Constltutlon the Clty operates pursuant to |ts Charter and the Clty Code as Well as.’
various local laws, Addrtlonally, certain New York State laws govern the City to the extent that such laws are
. applrcable to cities operating under a charter form of government The City of Dunkirk: Common Council. is the
s klegrslatlve body - responsible for. oVerall operatrons the Mayor serves as chref executlve offrcer and the Clty '
Treasurer serves as chief fiscal offlcer S : : o : - '

\The Clty provrdes the - followrng basrc services: garbage coIIectlon pollce and frre protectron recreatio’n )
programmrng for youths and adults, malntenance of parks, beaches and boat launches, marntenance of streets, -
water and seWer llnes regronal water filtration plant and sewage treatment facrlrtres o v

T The frnancral reportlng entlty consrsts of (a) the primary government whlch is the Crty of Dunkrrk New York (b) -
: crganrzatrons for which the’ primary government is flnanCIalIy accountable, ‘and {c) other organizations. for which
“the nature and srgmﬂcance of their relatlonshlp with the primary government are such that- exclusion'would cause -
: the reportrng entrtys financial statements to be mlsleadlng or incomplete as set forth in GASB Statement 14.

' ‘:'~The decision to mclude a potentlal component unlt rn the Cltys reportlng entlty is based on several orrterra set forth
in GASB 14 including legal standing, ,frscal dependency, and financial accountabrlrty Based on the application of -
. “these crrterra the followrng rs a br|ef revrew of certaln entltres conS|dered in determlmng the Crty s reportrng entlty

‘1 INCLUDED IN THE REPORTING ENTITY

The Clty of Dunkrrk Housmg Authorlty (the. Authorlty) was created in 1963 by the New York State Leglslature g

. The governing board of the Authority is appointed by the Mayor except for two tenant representatives. The local
) government provrdes no subsidy to the Authorrty nor is it responsible’ for - debt or operating deficits of the -
Authonty “The Authority is essentrally supportéd by operatlng subsidies from-the U. S.. Department of Pousrng
and :Urban Development. The local government does not appomt management of the Authority nor ‘doés it.
- approve the, Authorrty s budget or: hrrlng of staff. The local government has no oversight respons|b|lrty for funds-
. of the Authority. However, per New. York State “directive, the Dunklrk -Housing - Authonty is considered a -
. "component unit of the City and is discretely presented.. The rnformatron presented in, these flnan0|a| statements ‘
o for the Dunklrk Housmg Authorrty is-as of June 30, 2014 : a0

The Dunklrk Free L|brary (the lerary) was estabhshed in 1904 The lerary is. admrmstered by a Board of |

" Directors; one drrector is appointed by the Common ‘Council and the remaining dlrectors are. elected by“"’r ‘

“members of' the Library Board. = The- Lrbrary Board deS|gnates management and exercises complete i
;responsrb|l|ty over fiscal matters The local government has no oversrght respon5|brlrty over the funds of the
lerary, however, the City does’ provrde a-substantial portion of the operatrng costs for the Lrbrary The lerary ‘
o |s consrdered a component unrt of the Crty and is drscretely presented : C

- ,“The Dunkrrk Urban Renewal Agency (the Agency) was establrshed for the purpose of renovatlng and ;

. rehabilitating an economrcally depressed area with the City.  The Agency is presently inactive and yet it holdsf v

- title to certain parcels of land that are- unappraised.. The Dunkirk Urban Renewal Agency is.a component unit of -
- the Crty and rs drscretely presented : e . .

;26"_




 CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK
NOTES. TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Contlnued) ' '

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

’The Clty of DUI‘II(!I‘I( Industrlal Development Agency (the Agency) was establrshed by ‘the enactment of Sectlon'\ L
. 890-a of the General Munlcupal Law, effectlve June 17,1971, as a special act- of the New . York State Legrslature e
"The ‘Agency is authorized under the Act to issue bonds to promote the: economlc and lndustnal development of .~
the State.  The bonds are secured by pledges of any rents, revenues and recelpts as well s a lien onanda -
security: interest .in- the projects. being promoted Nelther the Agency. nor the City shaII be held liable for
repayment of these bonds out of any funds other than those pledged- by the ‘Agency. Members of the Board of .
+ Directors of the Agency are appomted by'and desrgnated to serve at the pleasure of the Cltys Common Councrl L
"+ The City of Dunkirk Industnal Development Agency is consrdered a component unit of the Clty and is drscretely

‘ presented

: Complete ﬂnanmal statements of these |nd|V|duaI component un|ts can be obtalned from thelr respectlve

\_admlnlstratlve of'flces

' City of DUnklrk\ Housing Auth'orityi
15 North Main Street, . :
K ~Dunk|rk New York 14048

| “Dunklrk Free lerary ‘7 S . o |
636 Central Avenue . e
?Dunklrk New York 14048

' Dunklrk Urban Renewal Agency “
- City Hall : ‘
o Dunkirk, New York 14048

o C|ty of Dunklrk lndustrlal Development Agency
‘ QC|ty Hall. '~ : . .
. Dunklrk New York 14048

-2 EXCLUDED FROM THE REPORTING ENTITY

. Although the followrng orgamzatlons functlons or activmes are related to the: Crty, they are not included in the " ‘
. City's reportlng entrty based on the professronal Judgment of responsrble local ofﬂmals because of the. reasons_ .

R noted

.',The Dunklrk Clty School Dlstnct was created by state leglslatlon WhICh desngnated the school board as the L
~ governing authority:- School board members are elected by the quallfled voters of the district. ' The school'board -~
" de3|gnates management and exercises complete respon5|b|||ty for all frscal matters The Crty Common Counc1l ‘

exermses no overstght over school operatlons

The Dunklrk Local Development Corporatlon (the Corporatlon) is a. specral purpose development corporatlon
- organized by the City under the Not-For-Profit Corporatlon Law of the State of New York. The corporatlon was. i
. created tor purchase lease, sublease, own; hold -sell, assign or pledge vanous parcels of real estate throughout ,‘ f
C 7 the Clty The Corporatron on behalf of the City, manages a Iow—mterest revolving: Ioan fund initially funded by . ‘
the repayments of Urban' Development Actlon Grant Loans. The Corporatlon is governed by a Board of
- Directors comprrsed of buslness leaders and commumty representatlves appomted by the Clty Common“

. Councrl

-27 -




~ CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014
(Contrnued) :

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

’ B Government-Wrde and Fund Frnancral Statements

The government—wrde frnancral statements (statement of net posrtron and statement of actrvrtres) report |nformat|on~ :

~on_ all the nonfiduciary ‘activities of the: City. - Interfund activity has been removed from: these statements. . - ‘

: Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and |ntergovernmental revenues, are differentiated. '
from buslness-type activities, ‘which rer to a 'significant extent on fees and charges for support Currently the City

‘ 'does not operate. any business- like activities. The. prrmary government is reported: separately from certarn legally -

T separate component unrts for whrch the prrmary government is frnancraIIy accountable L

R \The statement of act|V|tres demonstrates the degree to whrch the drrect expenses of a grven functron are offset by‘ '
program revenues. Drrect expenSes are those that are clearly identifiable with ‘@ specific - function. Indirect
' expenses have been.included as a part of the program expenses reported for- the various functional activities.

" Program revenues include. 1). charges_to those ‘who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods services, or. I

. privileges provrded by a given function-and 2) operatrng grants and contrrbutrons that are restrlcted to meeting the ™. '
-operational or capital requuements of a partrcular functron _ltems not properly included among program.revenues .
‘are reported rnstead as: general revenues ™ IR o RS ;

‘ Separate flnan0|al statements are prowded for governmental funds and frducrary funds even though the frducrary
o funds are excluded from the government -wide fihancial statements ‘ :

C Measurement Focus Basrs of Accountrnq. and Frnancral Statement Presentatron ’

The - government—wrde and frducrary fund flnancral statements are reported usrng the economrc resources

~ measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are-

‘ recorded when' a liability is incurred, _regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Grants and slmrlar rtems
- are recognrzed as revenues as soon as aIl elrglbrllty requrrements rmposed by the provrder have been met.

‘ Relmbursements are reported as reductrons to expenses Frducrary fund frhancral statements also report using thrs .
‘same focus and basis of accountrng although internal activity. is not eliminated in these statements. Property tax

revenues are recognrzed in the year for whrch they are Ievred ‘while grants are recognrzed when grantor ehgrbrlrty":

'requrrements aremet. - I : DR « ,

’ "Governmental fund statements are reported usrng the current frnanmal resources measurement focus and the~
* modified accrual basis of accounting. -Revenues are recognized when the’ underlyrng -exchange transaction’ has_'
occurred and the resources are available, For this purpose the City considers revenues to be- avarlable if the City.
o has collected the revenues in the current period or expects to collect them soon enough after the end of the period
to use them to pay liabilities' of the current perrod Expend:tures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, - *
. except for general obllgatlon bond prrnC|paI and |nterest and compensated absences: whrch are reported in the | year
‘due ‘ ‘ . :

) ’Property taxes, Ircenses and |nterest assomated wrth the current fiscal perrod are aII consrdered to be susceptrble L
-to accrual and so have been' recognrzed as revenues of the current fiscal perrod Revenues accrued at December‘
31 2014 are Irsted in Note 5. There were no slgnlfrcant revenues consrdered as not subject to accrual

‘ Revenues from Federal State or other grants designated for payment of specific. Crty expendrtures are recognlzed
‘when the related expendrtures are incurred. - At fiscal year~end excess receipts over expendltures are recorded as C
deferred revenue. Any excess expendrtures over recerpts are recorded as accounts recervable ‘ e "

-28 -




_ CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Contrnued)

NOTE 1= SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

~C. Measurement Focus, Basrs of Accountlnq. and Flnancral Statement Presentatlon contmued
o The City reports thefolloWing goVernmental funds whlch are aII COn‘s"idered major:, o

_ General Fund Thls fund- |s the pnncrpal operatlng fund of the City and |s used to account for all flnanC|al
n resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds : ‘

‘ Water Fund Thls fund is used to account for the revenues (prlmanly user charges) and expendltures related to =
- the operatlon and mamtenance of the water filtration plant and water Irnes for residential and commercral users,

- Wastewater Treatment Fund This fund is used to account for the revenues (user charges) and eXpend|tures~~ -
’ of the wastewater treatment plant for re5|dent|al and commer0|al users. ‘ \ : .

‘Spemal Grant Fund Th|s fund is used to account for Communlty Development Block Grants and Small C|t|es-
_‘:Entltlement Grants from the U. S Department of Housrng and Urban Development ) ,

‘ ,Caprtal Pro;ects Fund The capital prolects fund is used to account for and report flnan0|al resources to be,I
used for the acqursrtlon constructlon or. renovatlon of major capltal faC|I|t|es or equrpment T ‘
: L

' The City'currently does not operate any proprletary funds.

Addrtlonally, the C|ty reports the followmg fund type

A F|ducraryFunds

o Agency Fund The Agency fund is- custodral in nature and does not present results of operatlon nor have ‘
‘measurement focus. The Agency’ Fund is accounted for usrng the modlfred accrual basis of accountrng Thls
fund IS used to account for assets that the. government holds for others inan agency capacrty

?Trust Fund - The Trust Fund represents an- expendable trust. received and heId by the Clty whrch can onIy be“
utrllzed for the beneflt of Recreatlon/Youth programs of the Crty ~ :

As a general rule the ef‘fect of rnterfund actrvrty has been- ellmlnated from the government—wrde f|nancral
statements - " : : . ‘
‘Amounts reported as program revenues include (N charges to customers or appllcants for goods services or

- privileges ‘performed, ( ) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and. contnbutlons including™™ .
‘ j’spemal ‘assessments. - Internally dedicated’ resources are reported .as general revenues rather than program s
revenues leeW|se general revenues |nclude aIl taxes ' S o '
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CITY OF DUNKIRK NEW YORK
NOTES TO FINANClAL STATEMENTS
) YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
~ (Contmued)

-~ _NOTE 1= SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES .(,COI\_ITINUED) o

D Budqetsand Budqetarv Accountthd’—

s “As requlred by Artlcle V of the Clty Charter and Adm|n|stratlve Code the Cltys annual procedures in establrshlng
'the budgetary data reflected in.the fmancral statements are as follows N

Loay) On or-before the flrst day of October each year the Mayor shaII submlt to the Common Councrl a proposed
: budget and capltal budget together W|th a message concernlng same for the ensurng year '

b.) The budget message shaII descrlbe the rmportant features outline the proposed capltal programs rndlcate
maror changes from the current fiscal year in frnancral pohcres expendltures and revenues together with the
' reasons for such changes summarlze the City's debt condition; and include such other material |tems as the
Mayor may deem advrsable . : ’

e ) The proposed budget shall prowde a complete flnanmal plan of all Clty functlons and actrvrtres for the ensumgr

“year. -The budget shall be in such. form as the Mayor may deem advisable and shall includé: actual revenues and‘, o
_expenditures of the ‘preceding ‘fiscal year, “actual and estimated revenues and expendltures of the curtent fiscal " °

year; all estimated revenues and proposed expendltures for the ensuing. fiscal year (|no|ud|ng detailed estimates of =
revenue from all 'sources and the amount proposed to be raised by the tax levy upon real estate) The proposed - -
‘\~expend|tures shall be itemized as’ follows: each office, department, board and commission shall. be listed
separately showrng the proposed amount for salaries and wages, supplles ‘and” other expendltures and the total
. thereof, reserve for. uncollected taxes debt service; judgments ‘and settlements outstanding not- covered by .
‘ frnsurance capltal program statlng the amount to be financed, if any, and the method thereof; spemal funds and.

= "purposes not. otherW|se contalned in the budget antrcrpated def|C|t |f any, of the current year and contrngency S

’,fund

d.) lmmedlately after the presentatron of the proposed budget to the Common Councn the mayor shall file same
““in the City Clerk's Office.and cause sufficient copies of same and the: budget message to be made for distribution

. to'the publlc The proposed budget shall.be a public record ‘and shall be open to |nspect|on by. the’ public durlng Ce
- regular business hours in-the City Clerk's Office. Not less than five days. prlor ‘to the date of the public hearmg, the o
City Clerk shall cause to' be published in the official newspaper of the City a notice of public hearlng ‘which shall . -

~ specify the date, time and place of the publlc hearlng, the total amount of the proposed budget the amount thereof .
. to be raised by taxes; the anticipated tax rate per thousand of assessed valuatlon and that coples of the proposed
budget are avallable to the publlc in the Clty Clerk's Offlce ‘

‘ e.) The Common Councrl shall meet and oonduct a publlc hearlng at whlch the Mayor shall be present Suchl P fe

J*l,publlc hearlng shall be held no. later than November 15th..

'f) After conclusron of the publlc hearing, the Common Councrl shall con5|der the adoptlon of the proposed budget "

. and may adjourn from time to time until is has fully consrdered and revrewed the proposed budget The Common =
© . Council may add new programs or amounts, and may increase, ‘decrease or delete _programs and amounts,

* Expenditures requlred by law, for debt service, estimated deficits or estlmated revenues may not be changed/

except to correct om|33|ons ‘or mathematical errors. -The Common’ Council | may, however, decrease the amountof =

: ,} tax Ievy for the ensuing fiscal year-as proposed by the Mayor in proportlon to such decreases in total expendltures -
- as it may have determined.. If the Common Council shall increase the totaI expendltures such increase shall be o
mlncluded in the amount to be raised by taxes r » :
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CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK
_ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,
B YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 ’
) (Contrnued) :

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Budqets and Budqetarv Accountrnq, contrnued ' SRR e

g: ) Upon completron of the consrderatlon and revrew of the proposed budget the Common Councrl shallonor .~
“before the 15th day of December of each year adopt a resolutron approving the budget in the final form approved‘
by it and shall forthwith adopt an appropriation resolution and a- resolutron makrng a levy upon all the real property
"situated. in the Crty liable to taxation 'in the ensuing year The appropriation' resolution shall be passed on the

. budget as adopted but need nét be itemized further than by each office, board, department commission, fund and
- ‘program. -Upon adoption of the budget the appropriation and tax levy resolutions, the Crty Clerk ‘shall file a
~ certified copy of each with the City Treasurer and Fiscal Affairs Officer. The adoption of the budget shall constitute

- an appropriation of the amounts, a levy of the amount to be raised by taxation thérein stated, and a warrant to ther -

‘ Crty Treasurer to spread and extend such Ievy upon current assessment tax roIIs and to collect the same ‘ Lo

. f\ h.)If a budget has not been adopted as provrded by the Charter ‘on .or. before’ the 15th day of December the» -
gtentatrve Crty budget with amendments if any, shall become the budget for-the ensurng year .

R The amount of all taxes levied upon any parcel of real property shall, except as otherwrse expressly provrded by
" law, be and become a Iren thereon as, ofthe frrst day of January of the frscal year for whrch Ievred and shall remain . -

~ alien untrl pard o

j-) Formal: annual budgetary accounts are adopted and emponed for control of. aII governmental funds except the
‘ specral grant fund and the capital ‘projects fund. These budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accountrng ‘

prlncrples generally accepted in the United States except that encumbrances are treated as budgetary expendrtures L

_inthe year of occurrence of the commitment to purchase. ‘Al unencumbered approprratrons lapse at the end of the ‘

wfrscal year. Budgetary comparrsons presented in this report are on'the budgetary basis and represent the budget
- “as. modified.  This results in the followrng reconcrlratrons of fund balances computed on a GAAP basrs and a'
,budgetary basis: BN Lo : ~ , :

' . Wastewater

" General B ~ Water - o Treatment
~Fund ¢ Fund - Fund" ,
CGAAPBasis: TG
Fund Balances (Deficit) - 12/31/14 .. © o $5676,764 - ($882,698) . ($64,634)
: 'Deductvoutstanding enCumbr\ancest' S ’ ST 67,576} o ‘ 6,009 ol 70,005
":Budgetary Basrs {‘f ' SN R U e
Fund Balances (Defrcnt) 12/31/14 R $5,609,188 : ($888 707) -.($,134,63gy ,

= k) Total expendrtures for each actrvrty may not legally exceed the total approprratrons for that actrwty
‘ Encumbrances outstandlng at year end are’ accounted for by a reservatron of fund balance .

L ) Formal annual caprtal budgets and five: year proyectrons of capltal needs are adopted by the Common Counc:l
o for control of caprtal expendrtures : N ,. e

omy Budgetary controls for the Specral Grant Fund are establrshed in accordance with the applrcable grant
agreement whrch covers a perlod other than the City's fiscal year ‘
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" CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
_YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Contlnued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D Budqets and Budgetary Accountlnq, contlnued

. 'n.) At January 1, the amount of encumbrances carned forward from the prlor year-are; reestabllshed "These
'|ncreases amounted to $179 488, $26 454 and $58, 635 in ‘the General Water and Wastewater Treatment Funds,

- respectively. Durlng the year ended December 31,. 2014, supplemental approprlatlons (mcludrng the prior-year =
. -encumibrances) of. $186,501; $26 454. and $58 635 were approved in’ the General, Water - and Wastewater '

: Treatment Funds respeot|vely , ) E .

E. -‘Enc,umbrances

: Encumbrances represent commltments related to unperformed contracts for goods and servrces Encumbrance
v accountlng, under Wthh purchase orders, contracts and-other commitments for the expendrture of monies are
" recorded in order to reserve that portlon of-the, applrcable approprlatron is- employed as an extensron of- budgetary

controf in the governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservatlons of fund'

balanoes srnce they do not- constrtute expendltures or llabrlrtles ‘

F. Cash and Cash Equwalents‘

"‘lnvestments are- stated - at falr value Cash |ncludes amounts in demand deposrts as well as short-term :
7 |nvestments wrth a maturlty date wrthln three months of the date acqurred by the City. I o

G. Capltal Assets e

The Crtys property, plant equrpment and |nfrastructure W|th useful I|ves of more than one year are stated at”
-historical cost ‘and .comprehensively. reported in the. government-wide financial statements The City maintains
_infrastructure asset records consistent with all other capital assets. Donated assets aré stated at fa|rvalue on the

- date donated The City generally caprtahzes assets with costs of $1,000 or more as purchase and construot|onv
\outlays oceur. The costs. of normal maintenance and repalrs that:do not add to the asset value or materrally
extend -useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are” ‘depreciated usmg the straight- line method. - When

" capital assets are d|sposed of, the cost: and appllcable accumulated deprecratlon are removed from the respective i

- accounts, and’ the resulting gain_ or Ioss is ‘recorded in operatrons MaJor outlays for ‘capital assets and
lmprovements are capltallzed as prOJects are |ncurred ' T ' S

/Property, plant and equrpment of the Clty |s deprecrated usrng the stra|ght I|ne method over the followrng' g
"estlmated useful llves : . : R

‘""Assets‘ . v e TR A . s © 7 Years

Buildings ~ . e T R (| B
* Building rmprovements Cahy e S 20
- Land |mprovements SR T L 200
*Infrasttucture: Son o LS
gSanlta‘rysewers, B R S 0
‘Watermains - e B0
© o stormdrains e o R R ¢ N
- Traffic control systems -~ - " : L 20
- Roads -~ .. T e 200
S0 Sidewalks. oo 20
- Machinery and- equipment:- e R S
+ Office equipmerit and furnlture. - PR U [ I -3
Heavyequrpment e , R I S 10
- Vehicles 10
© other R s SRR A

Computers - - LT e R S -
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CITY OF DUNKIRK NEW YORK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014
(Contrnued)

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) B

H Propertv Tax Revenue Recoqnltlon '

‘ The Clty wrde property tax is IeV|ed by the Common Councrl effectrve January 1 of the year the taxes are,
recognizable as revenue. Taxes become a lien on the related property on-January 1st of the year for which they
“are levied. In'the government-wnde statements, property tax receivables and related revenue include all amounts .

~ due the City regardless of when cash is received. The City acts a$ the collection .agent for the. County of

]Chautauqua for County taxes levied on’ propertles within the City. “The City also collects school taxes for the.local
'school district for remissjon to them: During 1994, the City entered an agreement with the County of Chautauqua
whereby unpaid’ City and school taxes are to be turned over for enforcement. The agreement with the County of -

- Chautaugqua was renewed on March 10, 2014 forthe 2014, 2015 and 2016 tax years. The County relmburses the -

:Crty for unpald taxes and releV|es unpa|d taxes as County taxes in the subsequent year R

I. Compensated Absences

Crty employees are granted vacatlon personal and srck leave and co mpensatory tlme in varylng amounts In the ‘y ‘

.event of termrnatlon or upon retirement, an employee’ is entitled to payment for accumulated vacation, sick leave‘f,’ :

~ and unused compensatory absences at various rates subJect to certain condltlons maX|mum llmltatlons and unlon' -
‘atflllatrons : : » E : : s

‘ Compensated absences are reported as accrued in the governmentWIde f|nancra| statements Governmental '
. funds.report-only matured compensated absences payable to currently termlnatlng employees and ‘are lncluded |n
wages and beneflts S : ,

o Payment of compensated absences recorded in the general government Iong-term debt in the government—wrde :
~ financial statements is: dependent upon many factors; therefore, tnmng of future payment is not readily:

. ‘determrnable However management believes that sufficlent Tesou rces will be made avarlable for the future ~
, ~payment of compensated absences when such payments become due: I o ‘

J. Estlmates
. The preparatlon of flnancral statements in conformlty with: accountmg pnncrples generally accepted in.the Un|ted‘
. States of America reqwres management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the-reported amounts of
revenues, expenditures, assets -and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and during the reported perrod Actual results could dlffer from those estrmates and those
dlfferences could be S|gn|flcant : , Lo \

K. ‘;Accountrnq and Reportmq Changes

' g f_Dunng June 2013 GASB rssued Statement No 67 F/nancral Re,oon‘mg for PenS/on P/ans— an amendment of o

' GASB Statement No." 25, effective for the years ending December 31, 201 4. The objectlve of thls Statement is to

improve financial reportrng by. state and local governmental pension . plans This Statement results frorn a-

, comprehenswe review of the effectiveness of existing-standards of accountlng and financial reportmg for pensions.
" with regard to- providing decision-useful lnformatlon supporting asséssments of accountablllty and interperiod
~ equity, and, creating additional transparency. This Statement replaces the requlrements of Statements No. 25,

Financial Reporting for Def"ned Benef t Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for. Defined Contribution: Plans, ‘and -

'No. 50, Pension’ Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that ‘are. admiinistered through trusts or equtvalent

arrangements (hereafter jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria. The requirements of Statements 25

- and 50 remain applicable to pension plans that -are not administered through trusts covered by the scope of. this”

‘ " Statement and to défined .contribution plans that provide postemployment benefits. ‘other than penslons The
adoptlon of Statement No. 67 had no effect on the Clty s flnancral statements
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CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK
'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
‘ (Contlnued)

7 NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

_ DUrlng January 2013 GASB rssued Statement No 69 - Government Comb/nat/ons and D/sposals of Government U
- vaperatlons etfectrve for the year ending December 31, 2014. This Statement establlshes accounting andy »
- financial reporting standards related to government combinations and d|sposals of government operations that -

have been transferred or sold. ‘This Statement requires drsclosures to be made about government combinations

and drsposals of government operatlons to enable financial statement users to evaluate the naturé and financial
effects of those transactlons The City implemented Statement No. 69, effective for-the flscal year ending -

e ~December 31, 2014, with retroactive application for the fiscal year ended December 31 2013 The adoptlon of |

: »' Statement No.-69 had no effect on ‘the Cltys flnancral statements

,Dunng Aprll 2013 GASB lssued Statement No. 70 - Account/ng and- F/nancra/ Repon‘/ng for Nonexchange_’
Frnancra/ Guarantees effective for the year ending December 31, 2014 This Statement: requires a. government
. F'that extends a nonexchange flnan0|al guarantee to recognize a- liability when qualltatrve factors and historical data,
~if any, mdrcate that it is. more likely than not that the government will be required to. make a ‘payment on: the ,
guarantee. - The amount of the- Ilablllty to be - ‘recognized should be the discounted present value- of the best -
..~ estimate of the future outﬂows related to the guarantee expected to be incurred.. \When there is no best estlmate'
" by a range of the estimated future outflows can be estabhshed the amount of the llabrlrty 'to be recognlzed should\ .
be the discounted present value of the minimum_amount within the range. . The City- lmplemented Statement No. )

‘ 70 effective: for the fiscal year ‘ending December 31, 2014, with retroactlve appllcatlon for the flscal year, ended‘

December 31, 2013 The adoptlon of Statement No. 70 had no effect on the Clty s financial statements

L Future Impacts of Accountmq Pronouncements

~ The C|ty has not completed the process of eValuatmg the rmpact that will result from adoptlng Governmental
‘Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68 - Accounting and Financial Repon‘/ng for Pensions - an -
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 effective for the year ending December 31, 2015; GASB" Statement No.
.71 - Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - .an amendment of GASB o

~\Statement No.- 68; ‘effective for the year endrng December 31, 2015, GASB Statement No 72 - Fa/r Value -

" Measurement and Apphcat/on ef‘fectlve for the year. endlng December 31 2016

‘The Crty is. therefore unable to dlsclose the |mpact that adoptrng these GASB Statements will have on rts f|nanC|aI' )
- posmon and results of operat|on When such statements are adopted : B

NOTEZ STEWARDSHIP COMPLIANCE ACCOUNTABILITY

At December 31 2014 the Capltal PrOJect Fund had a defICIt fund balance in the amount of$10 817 644. The deficit .
was caused by (a) debt relatlng to the act|v1ty is considered to be-a fund Ilabrlrty rather than a source of flnancmg to be .
reported a’revenue and (b) expenditures to date exceeded revenues to date, Revenue ‘related to the debt; under the .

_ ‘modified accrual basis, is not recognized as. revenue until’ the debt -is repald from appropriations or the debt is.

’ .reflnanced ona long-term basis.” The deficit fund balance will eventually be eliminated as the bond’ antlmpatron ‘notes

" are retired. Management believes that. sufflcrent revenues. WIII be generated by the end of the pl’OjeCt to cover the"
addr’uonal prolect expendrtures |ncurred ‘ ‘ -
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 CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK ‘
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 -
(Contmued) '

NOTE2 STEWARDSHIP COMPLIANCE ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

": At December 31 2014 the Water Fund had a deflcrt fund balance in.the.amount of $882 698 The defrcrt was: caused"‘ .

by expendrtures in prior years exceedmg prior year revenues ‘Expenditures in prior. years were over—expended dueto’

increases in utllltles chemicals, repairs to- equ|pment sewer fees, contracted services, and eqmpment purchases that -

‘were not antrmpated Management has |ncreased water rates inan attempt to. correct the cumulatlve deficit. '

At December 31 2014 the Wastewater Fund had a deficit. fund balancein the amount of $64,634." The def|0|t Was, ‘

. caused by. expendltures in prror years exceeding prior year revenues Expendrtures in_prior years were over-expended .

" due to'increases in utilities and.chemicals that were not antlcrpated Management has |ncreased wastewater ratés in
“an attempt to correct the cumulatrve deficit. - - :

NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The C|tys mvestment pol|cres are. governed by state statutes and varrous resolutlons of the Common Councn Crty‘ -
moneys must -be deposrted in FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust companies- located wrthln the state. 'The -

~Treasurer .is authorized to use demand accounts and certificates of deposrt Permissible: investments . rnclude o :
obhgatrons of the U:S. Treasury and-U.S. agenciés, repurchase agreements and obllgatlons of New. York State or its .
localities. CoIIateraI is required for demand- deposrts and certificates of deposit. at. 102% of all deposns not covered by o

. 'federal deposrt insurance. . ‘Obligations that may be pledged as coIIateraI are oblrgatrons of the: United States and |tsf'
TN 4agen0|es and oblrgatrons of New York State and |ts munrcrpalrtres and. school districts.: » N

NOTE3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS B .

'.The detarl of cash and cash equrvalents at December 31 2014 is as. foIIows , - S ‘Carr’ying" ‘
A o B P N T ; .. ___Amount -
. Pettycash . T S % 1,400
~ Deposits (checking account) B U S Cee e o0 85651933
'Cash and cash equwalents (savrngs and CDs) ; e e 3,348,390
: Total PRI Tk AR s 11001723
' Cash and'cash equrvalents malntalned by the Crty at December 31 2014 con5|st of: o A Amount. -
.~ Government activities =, - » o c S S .o .. 8 11505286 v
~ Fiduciary activities' . - T T T B T U 396437 -
'V'T,otaI‘ cl e S L " - S Lo $ - 91601728
Debbsits - Al deposits are carried at cost plus accrued interest. R B ) c Bank o
g o T - __‘Balance
 Insured (FDIC) - ER “ . . g 500000
Unlnsured S ‘ : R RIS
: »»Collateral held by bank's agent in Crtys name - . : R - 11,400,323
_ Total deposrts LRI e O T g 11,900,323

k At December 31, 2014 the Crty did not have any |nvestments other than cash and cash equwalents

Investments - All |nvestments are carrled at the Iower of cost or market and are categorlzed |n the foIIowrng manner
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(Contmued)
NOTE 3- CASH AND INVESTMENTS CONTINUED
' , Category 1- Insured or. reglstered or secuntres held by the Crty or its agent in the Crtys name T

Category 2- Unlnsured and unreglstered W|th secuntles heId by the counterpartys trust department or agent in the ;
Cltysnamerl S : , ; _ R

~Ca’tegory 3 - Uninsured and unregistered, with no Securitikzation of the investments.

NOTE 4 PROPERTY TAX

E The Crty-W|de property tax is Ievred each January 1, whrch is also the hen date Property taxes are coIIected durlngj L

“the period April 1. through May 6 of each year The County assumes enforcement respon5|blllty for all. taxes levied by
“. the City. - - . \

. 'Tax rates are calculated using assessm,ent's prepared by City Assessors as adjusted by the New York State Board of

* Equalization and. Assessment for the purpose: of comparability. . The total taxable assessed value of real property = -

s mcluded in the tax Ievy of 2014 was approxrmately $280 million.. The effective tax raté on.this'value is approxrmately[ .
$17.30 per thousand. The statutory maximum tax rate is 2. 0% of the 5-year average of the equalrzed assessment
The 2014 levy represents approxmately 63 73% of the maX|mum statutory Ievy i : '

"'The Clty constltutlonal tax limit for the flscal year ended December 31, 2014 rs computed as follows o=

hy Frve year Average Full Valuatron

ofTaxabmraearEnam(201o'2014) R T R ,'fi,f . § 325,805,694
,‘Taxhnﬂt@DQ(ﬂé DR '”~j‘_v, L s este 14
- TotaITax Lewy . 43Tt
7 Less: Exclusions . . TN G S 684736
. Total Levy SubJectto Taxlelt RN Sl - R R 4152741 -
‘TaxMargln ,' - ;" : o S L o R s 2363,373 .

NOTE 5 RECEIVABLES

- Revenues accrued by the Crty oonS|st of the fctlowmg

A. Other Recelvables - represents amounts due from various sources. '

General Fund - - R B S % 0 561,143

CWaterFund o T 633,039

Wastewater Fund I S PR S o 709,485
Tomrw~~ . B u‘f“f,‘ o 1\90&667,

B 7Due from Other Governments State and federal recelvables prlmarlly represent cialms for rermbursement of )
"'expendrtures |ncurred Trelated to the communrty development ‘small cities program and various - state’ aided
_programs.’ They are net of related advances from New York State. - State and federal receivables’ also include

reimbursable amounts for constructlon expenditures made through the Capltal PrOJect Fund.  Other government
recelvables are amounts prlmanly due from other. Iocal mumcrpalltles and other m|scellaneous items. .
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' NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
Amou‘nts aoCrued at Deoernber 31,2014 are oomprtsed of:

State and Federal Recelvables B

$ 320978

- General Fund Ce
* Special grant 75,314
Capital Projects’ Fund ‘ 332,923 .
_ Total state and federal reoelvables . ‘738,21'5 I
Other ‘Government Recelvables o o
General Fund , 591,807
Total other government recelvables 591 807
Total due from other governments ' 8 1330 022 .
NOTES CAPITAL ASSETS
. Capltal asset act|v1ty forthe year ended December 31 2014 was- as follows
Beglnnlng ) - Endmg
. - SR Balances: ~Increases: Balances
1Governmenta| actlvrtres el S :
~Cap|tal assets not belng deprecrated S \ IEEET C o
Land S % 151155 $ . - ' § $ . 151,155 -
" Construction in progress L 22540326  _ . 3,477,957 . 26,018,283 - .
- Total capital assets not R RO R S
‘ bemg deprecrated 22691481 3,477,957 26,169,438
. Capltal assets being- deprecrated ‘ T P N R
~Infrastructures 0 84704071 e 34,704,071
~ Buildings and lmprovements ST 12416999 - . 3180, 112,420,179 -
Machinery and equipment .~ 16,785,858 . 62,060 - 16,847.918
Total capital assets bexng deprectated ©.63,906,928° - 65,240 o ..63,972,168 .
Less accumulated deprematlon forr T , , L
Infrastructures” - - 32,389,106 117,669 - . 32,506,775 -
Burldrngs and rmprovements o ’ 3::\.10,360,01‘6’ o 185,216" ', 10,545,232 )
Machinery and equipment. ~ +__ 14,654,214 480,771 . 15,134,985 -
- Total accumulated deprematron . 57,403,336 - . 183,656 - 58,186,992 .
Total capltal assets being T , T Co
deprecrated net . .. . 6503592 (718,416) - 5,785,176 -
3

" '$ 31,954,614

Governmental actlvmes caprtal assets net $‘29,195,073 ‘$ . 2,759,541

IR S




CITY OF DUNKIRK
NOTES. TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Contlnued) o

NOTE 6 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Deprecratlon expense was charged to the governmental funct|ons as follows

S_hared services Sl o s 12,208
Police department .~ = ERERE R~ 37 S
. Firedepartment = .- L L 79,709
 Transportation . . ST ST 232719
- ¢ Culture and’ reCreation, R B T o 23258
' Water department - . . . e - 196,574
Wastewater department -~ T 212,533
'Other home and commumty serwce S f‘ T SR o SR g 2,311
Total deprecratlon expense S .. § 783656 -

NOTE 7 LIABILITIES

»A.‘ Pension Plans L

' a) Plan Descrlptlon

The C|ty of Dunklrk partICIpates in the: New York and Local Employees Retlrement System (ERS) the New York :
State .and:Local Pollce and Fire Retirement System. (PFRS) and the Public Employees Group. Life- Insurance:

" Plan (System) These are cost-sharing multiple-employer. retirement systems The Systems prowde retirement
benefits as well s death and disability benefits. Obligations of employers- and employees to contribute ‘and- s

benefits to employees are governed by the New York State Retlrement and Social Securlty Law (NYSRSSL) As

- set forth jn the NYSRSSL the Cornptroller of the State of New York (Comptroller) serves as $Sole trustee and
‘ 'ﬁ'admlnlstratrve head of the Systems The Comptroller shall adopt and _may amend rules and regulations for the = . -

admiristration and transaction of the'business’ of the Systems and' for custody and control of its funds.” The -
V‘Systems issue a publicly. available financial report that includes financial statements and required -

supplementary information.” That report may be obtalned by wntmg to the New York State and Local Retlrement . " "

Systems 110 State Street Albany, NY. 12244

b ) Fundlnq Pollcv

. fThe Systems are nonoontnbutory except for employees who Jomed the New York State and Local Employees -
\Retlrement System after. July 27, 1976 who ‘contribute 3% of their salary for the first ten. yearsof membershlp

~ Under the authorlty of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller annually certifies the rates expressed used in computlng 5
- the employers contnbutlons The requwed contrlbutlons for the current and two precedlng years were! -

ERS "‘\ __PFRS

2014 § 901158 $ 1,376,136
2018 8550820 1,389,150
‘-2012\ R 748,408 _ “,1;110,364 o

. year.,
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JThe Cltys contrlbutlons made to the systems were equal to 100 percent of the contrlbutlons reqmred for eachj W




"CITY OF DUNKIRK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 '
B (Contmued)

~ NOTE 7 - LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

' B. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

- al) Plan‘ Descriptioh} .

‘ The C|ty of Dunklrk adm|msters a slngle employer deflned beneflt healthcare plan ("the Retlree Health Plan") .
- The plan- provides healthcare to a single dlsabled retiree until the age of 70 through the City's group health -
insurance plan WhICh covers both active employees and the above mentioned retired - member. Beneflt
provisions were establrshed through negotlatlons between the C|ty and union. representlng Clty employees and ‘
are renegotrated as each barga|n|ng perlod explres : I . ’

b ) Funqu Pollcv

e ]‘Contnbuﬂon reqUIrements of the Ret|ree Health Plan by the C|ty are establlshed and may be amended through,
! negot|at|ons between the City. and the. bargamlng units. . The contrlbut|on is based on pay-as-you-go financing

‘ requrrements For-the .year ended December 31, 2014, the City contnbuted $22 968, or. 74 95% -of the -
' actuarrally requrred contrlbutrons to the Retlree Health Plan ) : L -

o el Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obllqatlon -

The Crtys annual other postemployment beneflts (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the annual requnredf
contribution (ARC) The City.-has elected to calculate the ARC and related information using the’ alternative.
measurement method permitted by GASB Statement 45 for employers in plans ‘with fewer than one hundred .
total" plan members.. The ARC represents-a level of fundrng that, if paid on .an ongoing. basis, is. prolected to
" cover normal cost each year and- to amortize: any unfunded actuarral Irabrlrtles (or funded excess) over a perlod .
_ wnot to exceed thlrty years : . C o o :

: '.-fThe followrng table shows the components of the Cltys annual OPEB cost over the year the amount actually :
: 'contnbuted to the plan and changes in the City's net OPEB obllgatlon to the Ret|ree Health Plan ‘

Annual requrred contrrbutron - f" B I L U 32332
Interest on net OPEB obllgat|on AR R ,(1,.6_86),

Pl AdJustment to annual requlred contribution' ‘ T

Annual OPEB cost (expense) I : 73;0,6,46‘

: tContrlbut|on made ‘ AR Lo (22,968) =
Increase in net ‘OPE’B'oingat'io'n S e1s
/ 'Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year- =~~~ . 19978
, ,Net-OPEB’obligation-‘end~ofyear Lo -$ “27 656

The Crtys annual OPEB cost the percentage of annual OPEB cost contrlbuted to the plan and the net OPEB
1 oblrgatlon (prepayment) for 2014 isas follows

! Co e e " Percentageof Net
‘ © Year -~ ‘Annual - - -Annual OPEB - . OPEB
_Ended . _ OPEB Cost " Cost Contributed - Obligation
C 127312011 $ 21, 923 L 107.49% 8 ¢ (221)
“42/31/2012 . 36455 . B9.67% 10,844
12/31/2013 . 36,455  72.26% 19,978

12/31/2014. 30,646 . 7495% = 27,656
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CITY OF DUNKIRK .
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

(Contlnued) Lo L

NOTE 7 - LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) .

L B;: Postemployment Benefits‘ Other Than Pensions, continued

8

‘ ."'d.)' Funded’Status and Funding Prog'ress o

As of July 1 2014 the most recent actuanal valuatlon date the funded status of the Retrree Health Plan was as

o follows:
S Actuar‘ialaccrued liability (AAL’). S o : $ ,1'07,4‘18 j
Actuarial value of plan assets . [
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)~~* * _$ 107,418 "
Funded ratio (aetuarial‘\/aIUe_of plan‘as‘sets/\AAI;)_ B S . 0.0%
‘Annual covered payroll (active plan members) .~ $ -
"UAAL asa percentage of annual covered payroll o 0.0%

e. ) Actuarlal Methods and Assumptlons

o \Actuanal valuatlons of an ongorng plan |nvolve estlmates of the value of reported amounts and assumptlons
. about the probabrhty of occurrence of ‘events in the future. " Examples, include assumptions- about future
employment mortality, and the health-care cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded:status- of the

v “plan and the annual required contnbutlon of the employer afe subject to continual | revision as actual results are .
t ’compared with. past expectatlons and new estimates are made. about the future. The schedule of fundlng o

progress,. presented as required supplementary |nformatlon following" the notes to the financial statements,
lpresents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is mcreasrng or.
decreasmg over time relatrve to the actUarlal accrued liabilities for beneflts -

‘ 'Prolectlons of beneflts for frnanmal reportlng purposes are based on the substantlve pIan (the plan understood o
by 'the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits prowded at the time of each valuatron and

'the historical pattern of sharmg of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The

’factuarlal methods and assumptions used include techmques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility:in
actuarial accrued l|ab|l|t|es and the actuanal value of assets, consistent with: the long-term perspectlve of- the‘
) calculatlons B - ‘ : i .

~In the July 1 2013 actuarlal valuatlon the alternative measurement method was used Based on the h|stor|cal
- and expected returns of the Crtys short-term investment portfollo a discount rate of 5.6 percent was used In

,add|t|on a srmpllﬂed versmn of the prolectron of future beneﬂt payments was used

: . C Short Term Debt

',Llab|lrt|es for bond ant|0|patlon notes (BANs) are generally recorded for in the cap|tal prolects fund The notes or’,
, ‘renewals thereof may not extend more than two years . beyond the orlglnal date of issue- unless a portlon is
‘redeemed W|th|n two years and wrth|n each twelve: month perlod thereafter o

:State Iaw requwes that BANs rssued for capltal purposes be converted to Iong-term obllgatlons wnthln flve years
after the original issue date. However BANs issued for assessable |mprovement projects may. be renewed. for
periods equivalent to the. ma)omum life of the permanent flnancmg, prowded that stlpulated annual reductlons of

pnnmpal are made o
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CITY OF DUNKIRK
NOTES TO, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
‘ ’ (Contlnued)

_ NOTE 7 - LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

" The f,o'lllowin‘g is an analysis of outstandi_ng BANSs at December 31, 2013

‘ "‘VMatunty © ' interest

Fund *‘Descrfipti‘on' o Amount . . Date . __ Rate
 Cepitalprojects. Water fitration plant -~ §. 12466000 .  326/2015  150%
»Capitalprojeots Seawall construct|on I — 4,200,000 ‘3/2'6/2'015." N 1.00%
R $ 16666000

C Short Term Debt contmued

\ Revenue antlclpatlon notes (RANs) :may be |ssued in antlcrpatron of collectlon of revenues other than real estate
‘ taxes for meeting. expendltures payable from the type of revenue for which the borrowmg was made RANSs must
,mature within ‘one’ year and may be renewed from time to time, but each renewal shall be for a- penod not

_exceedlng one year Durlng the year ended December 31 2014 the Clty d|d not issue, renew or repay any RANs ’_ S

’ rTax AntICIpatlon Notes (TANs) may, up ‘to the maximum authonzed by statute be lssued agalnst the antlcrpated‘
collection of taxes or assessments levied-or to- be levied against real property Thesa notes may be renewed fora
“period not to exceed one yeat-and must be retired. within. five years of the- orlglnal |ssue Durmg the year ended S

= ’Deoember 31 2014 the Clty did not. issue, renew or repay any TANS.

DI Lonq Term Debt.

a) Constitutional Debt Limit

.  The City constitutional debt Iimitat December 31, 2014 is computed as follows:.

Flve—YearAverage FuIIValuatxon .
of Taxable Real Estate (2009 2013) ‘

" Debt lelt@7% . :
.. Net Indebtedness (after statutory exclusrons)
i Net Debt Contractlng Margln

\Percentage of Debt Contractrng Power Exhausted |

b.)SerialBondsr -

. ¢ B
C

$ 317.318.734

. 22,212,311

480000:
$ 21732311' ,
216%"

- The City borrows money in. order to acquire Iand or equtpment of construct bUIIdIngS and tmprovements Thls‘ E
" énaples the cost of these capltal assets to be borne by the present and future taxpayers receiving the benefit of

the capital assets. These long-term liabilities, which are full faith and credrt debt of the local government are - o

’recorded in the. governmental funds in the government-W|de flnanClaI statements
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CITY OF DUNKIRK ,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

(Continued) -

' ‘NOTE 7 LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

D, Lonq Term Debt contrnued

o el 'Compensated’Absences .

As explalned in Note ", compensated absences are recorded |n the government-wude flnanmal statements
~ Governmental funds. report only matured compensated absences payable to currently termlnatlng employees
whrch are |nc|uded in wages and benefuts ‘ ~

o d'.)}Summarv of Chvanq'e‘s in General Lan Term Debt )
-~ The foltoWing is a summary o"f"chang'esin'gener‘a‘l iong?term liabi!ities:ﬁ :

'Balancey», ) ‘7: SR ) : -{B‘alancet'i"'
~ 01/01/2014 .- Increases . Decreases ‘== . 12/31/2014 .

Serialbonds . - § 5185000 @ $ o7 § 315000 - $ 4,870,000

Compensated absences - | 4,058,791 . 117,789 _ - 4,176,580

5 0243791 § ""1'17,‘78‘9-\/ $' 315, 000 5 9,046,580

Addrtlons and deletlons to compensated absences are. shown net ‘since it is
|mpract|cal to determme these amounts separately :

L ,e) Long Term Debt Maturltv Schedule '

i The follong is a summary of long term Iiabilities‘j ‘

B | Lt * ' Outstanding
ST ~ Date s Maturity Interest .~ Original‘ - . Balance
“Purpose ' Issued. " Date” - . “ Rate. -~ Amount . : _12/31/2014

‘,Public improvement. -~ - 0 - A R Coe e e T

, Boardwalk Market ~11/10/2011° . “11/1/2021 = 2.50-3.75%. ~ 650,000 ~ $ - - 480,000
" Water treatment . L L e e T

‘plant renovation . - 9/1/2008 - °  5/1/2033 - 425-475% . 4,539,000 . . 3,575,000

- Watertreatment ‘ o o : " el o

plantrenovation - 4/4/2010,  5/1/2015 . 269% - 280,000 e 000

'~ Public improvement . S AR ST S e
© Water Mefers * 3/28/2013 ' 3/16/2033  3.375-4.00% . 785000 755,000

$ - 4 870 ooo! B
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CITY OF DUNKIRK -
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

(Continued)

NOTE7-LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) . . .

" D. Long Term Debt, covntir‘,\ued" L

" 'f) Future Debt Service Requirements
- The ‘following tablé summarizes the City's f,uture debt service requirements as of December 31,'2014: ‘

'Serial Bonds

 YEAR'ENDING DECEMBER 31, . -~ .. . - Principal -~ Interest
2016 o . . .. g 315000 '$ . 199,113
2016 . o 260,000 - 188,481
2017 . - . . 260,0000 . = 178506
2018 ~ . 265000 - = 168,369
2019 . ... . 280000 157,663
20202024 - o 4275000 618,453 ‘
20252029 . . R .. . 1200000 - - 362506,
120302033 . . ST 1015000 93,626
"l"OTALw: o 54870000 1,966 717

‘ NOTE 8 EQUlTY CLASSIFICATIONS

AL Government-wrde Statements '

n the government—wide ,staternents; there are thr'ee classes of net pcsltlon;,, V

Net investement In’ Carpttal"As‘sets' This class consists of net capital 'assets (cost less accumulated'depreciation) ‘
“reduced by outstandlng balances of related debt oblrgatlons from the acqulsrtlon constructlon or lmprovements of
these assets . .

" /,‘Restrlcted Net posltror Restncted net posrtlon report constralnts placed on assets that are either legally |mposed
by credrtors (such as. through covenants) grantors, contributors, or laws or. regulatlons of other governments or'
‘frmposed by Iawthrough constltutlonal prowsrons or enabllng Ieglslatron : :

Restnctrons of net posmon have been recorded in the government-W|de frnancnal statements of the Clty at December_ﬂ, -

v . '731 2014 At December 31, 2014 the Clty has recorded the foIIowmg restrlctlons
Restrlcted for Caprtal Equment represents resources that are commltted for future capltal equrpment .

B “'Restrlcted for Tax: Stablhzatron -zrepresents resources approprlated by the Common Councn to keep future tax'
increases at a mlmmum ln any flscal year -

Restncted for Employee Beneflts - represents resources to be used to help m|n|m|ze the fmanmal burden of
t ,future employee beneﬂt |ncreases : , :

' Restncted for Street Improvements - represents resources that are commltted for future street constructlon

i Restrlcted for Encumbrances - represents commrtments related to unperformed (executory) contracts for goods
- or services. o o : : :

Unrestrlcted Net P05|t|on - Desrgnatlons are not Iegally requlred restnctrons but are segregated for a speC|f|c:'“"
' ‘purpose. At- December31 2014, the Clty had not desrgnated any unrestncted net. posmon L . S
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o CITY OF DUNKIRK
- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
| YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

(Contlnued)

NOTE 8- EQUITY CLASSIFICATIONS (CONTINUED)

B Fund Statements

: , ; ln,the“fund basrs statements there are five classifications of fund balance:m

' Non-SpendabIe rncludes amounts that cannot be spent because they are elther not in spendable form or Iegally or
v contractually requrred to- be malntalned |ntact The C|ty does not have any nonspendable fund balance at December '
31 2014, : : :

. Restrlcted |nc|udes amounts With constralnts placed on the use of resources e|ther externally |mposed by. credrtors

~ grantors, contnbutors or laws or, regulat|ons ‘of _other governments; or imposed by ‘law through constitutional

" “provisions or enabling legislation. All encumbrances of funds other than the General. Fund are. classmed as restncted ‘
fund balance The City has establrshed the followmg restrlcted fund balances: :

' bﬁTax Stabrllzatron - represent funds that may be approprlated to keep future tax i |ncreases at a mlnlmum in future ‘
" years. The Common Councrl d|d not approprlate any of these funds in developmg the. 2014 or 2015 General -

l : ‘Fund budgets

= \Other ‘Fund Actlvrtres - represents resources’ accumulated by specral revenue and or capltal prolect fundsj‘" '
! dedicated to be used for the purpose for which® the fund was' created ,

: Encumbrances - Encumbrance accountmg, under Wthh purchase orders contracts and other commltments of"‘

expendltures are recorded for budgetary control purposes in order to reserve appllcable approprratlons is o
employed as a control in preventrng over—expendlture of estabhshed approprratlons Open encumbrances are =

K reported . as restrrcted fund  balance in all funds- other than the General Fund, since they do not constltute ‘

: expendrtures or I|ab|ht|es and wrll be honored through budget appropnatrons in the subsequent year: ‘

» «Commltted |ncludes amounts that can only be USed for the specrﬂc purposes pursuant to constraints- |mposed by

. formal actron of the. Cltys hlghest level of decision makmg authorlty, i.e., the Common Councrl CAt December 31, -
T 2014 the Clty d|d not have any commrtted fund balances o s - : S

- Asstgned ncludes amounts that are constralned by the Cltys |ntent to be used for specmc purposes but are nelther« )
. restrlcted nor commrtted The Clty has the foIIowmg ass|gned fund baIances o : :

: Caprtal Equlpment - represents resources set aS|de by the Common Councrl to be used for the acqulsmon of ;
capltal equrpment ~ . s .

‘ Street Improvements - represents resources set. a5|de by Common Councrl for rmprovements to crty streets '
) 'Emplcyee Benefrts - represents resources set aslde to help m|n|m|ze the fmanmal burden of future employee k o
Encumbrances All encumbrances ofthe General Fund are classrﬂed as ass|gned fund balance

i UnaSSIgned rncludes all other General Fund net posmon that does not meet the deflnrtron of the above fourl‘
classrflcatrons and are deemed to be ava|lable for general use by the Clty o ‘ : : L

-‘Order of Use of Fund Balance - The Crtys polrcy is to, apply expendltures agarnst nonspendable fund balance
. restricted fund balance commrtted fund balance, assigned fund balance and unassigned fund balance at the end of"
- the fiscal year. For aIl funds, nonspendable fund balances are determined first and then restricted fund balances for -
. specmc purposes are determined. Any. remarmng fund balance amounts' for funds other than the General Fund are
- classified as restrlcted fund balance. .In: the: ‘General Fund commrtted fund balance is, determined next and then’
) 'ass:|gned The' remalnlng amounts are reported as unassrgned Assrgnments of fund balance ‘cannot ‘cause a
N negatrve unassrgned fund balance : o
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- CITY OF DUNKIRK o
_NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
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(Continued)

NOTE9 CONTINGENCIES -

A Lease Comm|tments and Leased Assets :

: The Crty Ieased varlous equrpment and property dunng 2014 under a number of operatmg Ieases Total rental
expendltures for the year ended December 31 -2014 were approxrmately $63 602 :

The m|n|mum future non- cancelable operatlng lease payments are as follows

Year endlng December 31 2015 ,' : Y S T 1Y £ Y A

K Lo 2018 9164
2017 - 8354

2018 . TN B . 8,085

2019 S 2021

,"B Grant and Aid Proqrams;\ i

The Clty réceives 5|gn|f|cant flnancral aSS|stance from numerous federal and state agenmes The recerpt of such

funds generally requrres compllance with terms and- conditions specified in the grant agreements andis subject to -

-~ audit by the grantor agencies. During 2014 the U.S. Department of Housrng and Urban Development completed its . -

“review of the- Cltys utlllzatron and. administration of certain Community. Development Block Grants ("CDBG") -
funds over the past several years. As a result.of such. review,- HUD 'determined that various aIIocat|ons of certain
CDBG funds were noncompliant with certain HUD protocols and gwdellnes and directed the City to reimburse the
CDBG program monies delinéated for various uses. The C|ty and HUD have reached an agreement whereby the
City will remit a total of $750 000. $450,000 was remitted in 2014 and the remaining will be paid during 2015 and
2016 to HUD and agreed toa Voluntary Grant Reduction durrng the 2015 and 2016 program years ; :

C thrgatro :
f The Clty is party to varrous Iegal proceedmgs whlch normally occur in govemmental operatrons The City believes
that its ultimate Irablllty, if -any, in connection wrth these matters wrlI not have a matenal effect on the C|tys o

flnan0|al cond|t|on or results of operatrons

D Enwronmental Remedlatlon

‘ - The Cltys polrcy is not to take possessron or ownershrp of propertles with potentlal or known poIIutlon remedlatlon. B

“issues. The City currently does not have any propertles ‘with pollutlon remediation obllgatlons where the City- -
retams ownership rights that. have either been remediated or have grant funding ‘in- place to be- remedlated Any -

potentlal ‘future environmental remediation is considered to be de minimus to thé City. Therefore, the City has not L

" ‘'made any adjustments related to GASB No 49to record any potentlal envrronmental remed|atlons

NOTE 10 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS '

) ‘iThe Crty has evaluated subsequent events through May 22, 2015 the date wh|ch the f|nancra| statements were'
. available to be lssued On March 26, 2015 the City |ssued $3, 180 000 Public lmprovement Serial Bonds, 2015 and
+$13,150,000 Bond: Ant|0|pat|on Notes: to refinance the majority of principal ‘of the outstanding $12 466,000 Bond. -

‘Ant|0|pat|on ‘Note and the entire $4,200,000 Bond ‘Anticiatpion Note which matured on.that date. The Serial Bond- R :

. requires annual pr|n0|pal payments and 'semi annual - interest payments at rates varying bétween 2. 5% and 3.0% "
'through 2035 The Bond Antrmpatlon Note matures March 24 2016 and bears |nterest at 0. 75% ‘ ’

. ln the Spnng of 2015 the Clty purchased three Internatlonal trucks W|th Henke pIowmg accessones ‘at.a cost of

. $176,067 per truck under a munlcrpal lease agreement with First Nragara Leasing at 1.54% through a Tax exempt‘ .
. munlmpal lease/purchase The lease requrres annual payments of $134 415 in-each of the years 2016 through 2019
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- CITY OF DUNKIRK -
"NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 ‘
’ (Contmued) ‘ -

, NOTE‘10 ;,sUBSEQuENT EVENTSV, Continued -

“No- addltlonal subsequent events have been ldentlfled that would reqwre adjustments of or dISC|OSUI'e in: the
accompanylng flnan0|al statements ’ L ‘ :
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CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK -~
; N BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
RS . ' 7 ‘. GENERAL FUND ° :

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

_47-

' T ) oo : “Variance
* Origjnal . " . ‘Reyised . . : Favorable s
Budget Revisions ~ Budget . " Actual Encumbrances . (Unfavorable} . . . .°.
. REVENUES: - o . Tl S o )

Real propertytaxes ‘ - - §. - 4837477 % - "§$ U 4837477 '$ . 4,837,477 - Cola e

‘Salestax . " 2,251,015 . . 2251015 2,403,834 - 152,819-

Property tax nems ) . : ) . 2,867,649 : 2,867,649 2,885,118 - 17,469 -

" Non-property taxitems. . - .| U 345,000 - . 345,000 - 306,928 - (38,072)

Departmental income - L R 1,653,300 1760, 1,655,060 1,634,279 - (20,781)

‘Shared services - : 481,000, 4,000, 485,000 515,852 - - 30,852

Use of money and property 56,510 - 56,510" 58,804 - 2,294

~ Licenses and permits L 37,800 B 37,800 o 36,919 - (881)

“Fines and forfeitures - e 125,000 D 125,000 © 129,927 - 4,927

Sale of property and compensahon for loss 68,500 © 978 ! 69,478 10,670, - (58,808)

Mlscellaneous . 124,375 . © 275 . 124,650 708,264 - 583,614

. State aid- K 2,500,134 . ol - 2,500,134 2,303,899 (I (196,235)

Federal aid , - L R 74,928 - 74,928

* . Total revenues 15,347,760 - 7,013 15,354,773 45,906,899 . | 552,126
. EXPENDITURES: ‘

Current: . K - o i Do i L
Council . 38,650 - PR 38,650 - - 38,173 . 477
Mayor © G- 103,725 . 112 103,837 103,717 .65 55 -
Financial 399,943 .. 1,949 401,892 /349,073 3,914 48,905
Staff 547,135 - 5715 . - . 552,850, 546,763 756 . 5331
Shared services .* - 550,304 10,661 - . 560,965 . 597,133 3,497 . (39,665)

' Speciatitems . " 303,816 (33,000) - - 270,816. 236,024 e © 34792
Police department 3,304,410 30,429 3,334,839 ' 3,420,191 " 4,655 * (20,007)
Fire departrnent '1,951,467 4,000 1,955,467 2,070,308" © 9,077 . (123,918)
Other public safety ' 227,667 - 10,502 ¢ 238,169 201,544 29,771 6,854
Transportation . . 1,684,989 187,162 1,872,151 2,018,670 . 12,376° " (158,895)
_Economic assistance and. opportunlty S = 47,651 6,000 53,651 .. 50218 B 3,433
Culture and recreation B 641,533 . 665 642,198 .- 658,065 . 1,030 (16,897)
Home and communlty service 839,884 - (37,694) 802,190 1;479,319 2,435 (679,564)
Employee benefits' 4,628,899 e 4,628,899 4,580,335 I - 39,564

Debtservme ‘ ;o ' N e . . ’

- Principal . Ll . 60,000 B 60,000 -60,000 - -
Interest : - 17,687 - - 17,687 17,688 - )

. Total expenditures 15,347,760 . 186,501" 15,534,261 16,436,221 ' - 67,576 (969,536)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES . E . (179,488) - " - (179,488) (529,322) C(67,576) | (417,410)
" FUND BALANCE, January 1 6,206,086 : . 6,206,086 6,206,086 - -
FUND BALANCE, December 31 . $ - 6,206,086 §. -(179,488) $ 6,026,598 $ 5,676,764 (67,576) (417,410)
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“CITY OF DUNKIRK NEW YORK

DECEMBER 31 2014

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

) The schedule of fundrng progress presented below provrdes a. consolrdated snapshot of the Crtys abrlrty to
- meet current and future liabilities with the plan assets. of. partrcular |nterest to most is the funded status ratio.. -
. This ratro conveys.a plan s level of assefs to liabilities, -an important. mdrcatorto determrne the financial health ,

~.of the ‘OPEB. plan.. The closer the plan.is to a 100% funded status, the: better posrtron it will be in to meetall
of its future Ilabllrtres The aotuarlal value of assets and actuarlal aocrued Ilabrllty are obtarned from the Iatest

~ actuarial report

Actuarial

7 Accrued - uaAL

R ~ Actuarial - Liability . Unfunded ST asa%of
Actuarial -~ Valueof - - (AAL)- - AAL ‘Funded -~ Covered . Covered -
Valuation ~ ~ Assets . Entry Age, (UAAL) ‘Ratio . Payroll Payroll -~

Date -~ (@ (b) (b-a) _(ab) _(e) _((b-a)lc)

71112008, " $ -8 ‘(-106 697 - $ ,105;697_ ©00% 0.0%
7112009 $ - %$ 215071 § 215071 00% " $ 0.0%

7112010 $ - 202616 $ 202616 . - 00% $ . 0.0%
7172011 1§ - $ 199,338 ~.$ 199338 . 00% $ 0.0%
CLTM2012 8 S $ 182,146, § 182,146 S 0.0% $ 0.0%

CUTMR2013 -8 - $. 140,546 $ 140,546 . 00% $ 0.0%

$ - $ 107418 § L 0.0% % 0.0%

712014

_50\_;

107,418




| ' CITY OF DUNKIRK, NEW YORK
 SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (1)
,  YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014 -

‘ F;edera\l

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ L eFDA Federal - .
PROGRAM TITLE : “ .+ Number(2) Notes =~ Expendltures (3) R
: _us. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING .
. -AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ‘
Direct Programs.
Community DevelopmentBIock Grants - g L o
, EntrtlementGrants o Sl - 14:218 o '$ - 637,330 .
Tota/US Department of R T R R IS
Housmgand Urban Deve/opment ‘ o o 687,330
o Us. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY .
~ Pass through NYS Division of Homeland Secunty L _— - e
; DlsasterGrants PublchSS|stance - . 97036 . - e 74928
tha/'U.S: Departmeht,of/-{ome/'and Sgcdﬁ'ty o ‘ o R R 7:«4‘,9281‘ o

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERALAWARDS g 712068

The accompanylng notes are an 1ntegral part of this schedule
R oL 51 - .




CITY OF DUNKIRK NEW YORK

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2014

- Notes: |

S
,"(2)
" @

lncludes aIl maJor and nonmajor programs
Source October 2014 Catalog of Federal Domestrc Assrstance .

Prepared on the "GAAP" basrs of accountrng and mcludes all federal program '
expendltures ' . ;

The accompanyrng schedule of expendltures of federal awards mcludes the federal grant

~ . activity of the City of Dunkirk,- New York. The mformatron in this- schedule is presented in

o accordance with the requrrements of OMB Circular A-133," Audits of States, Local -

: Governments and Non- Profit Organizations.. Therefore some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparatron of; the basrc ’

frnancral statements whrch are: presented on the modlﬁed accrual basrs

B -75‘2:-




'JOHNSON. MACKOWIAK
& ASSOCIATES, LLP -

~ Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

\

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
“FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT |
AUDIT/NG S TANDARDS

May 22, 2_0‘1,5

Honorable Mayor ,
Members of Clty Council -
Treasurer :

" City of Dunkirk. .
Dunklrk New York 14048

: We have audited, in accordance with the audltlng standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards" applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Aud/t/ng Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental actlvmes the business- type activities, the aggregate d|scretely
‘presented component units, and each major fund of the City-of Dunkirk, New York, as of and for
the year ended:December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements which
collectively comprise City of Dunklrk New York’s basic financial statements and have lssued
our report thereon dated May 22, 2015 S

, Internal Control Over Fmanc-al Reportmg

In plannlng and performlng our audit of the flnanCIaI statements we consrdered the Clty of -
- Dunkirk New York’s. internal control .over financial reporting (lnternal control) to. determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate.in the circumstances for the purpose of expressmg our

opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on-the

effectiveness of the City “of Dunkirk New York’s internal control. Accordlngly, we do not express s f_ -

‘an oplmon on the. effectlveness of the Clty of Dunklrk New York s mternal control

A defICIency in /nterna/ Contro/ exists when the de3|gn or operatlon of a control does not allow

management ‘or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functlons to .

prevent, -or detect and correct, mlsstatements on a tlmely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entlty s financial statements: will not be prevented
“or detected and corrected on a timely basis, A significant: deficiency is a def|01ency, or a-
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than, a material weakness yet ‘
' |mportant enough to merlt attentlon by those charged Wlth governance ‘

, : -53-
70 East Main Street / Fredonla New York 14063/ 716 672~ 4770 / Fax 716~ 679 1512 / ]ma cpas. con




Our consrderatron of mternal control was for: the limited purpose descnbed in. the first paragraph :
“of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in-internal control that ‘might be

‘material - weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, ‘material - weaknesses or -
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified:  Given these limitations, during-our "

~audit we did not identify any: deficiencies in Internal control that we.consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may eX|st that have not been |dentrf|ed ‘We did

- "identify- certain deficiencies in internal control," described in the accompanyrng schedule of

’fmdmgs and questroned costs that we conS|der to be srgnlﬁcant deﬂcrenmes (14 01)
| Compllance and Other Matters ; L

As part. of obtalnmg reasonable assurance about whether the City of Dunklrk New York s

- financial statements are free from- material mlsstatement we performed tests of its compliance -

with certain provisions of laws, regulatlons contracts and grant agreements, noncomphance, ‘

" with which could have a direct and material effect on.the determination of financial statement
~_amounts. However, prowdmg an- op|n|on on compliance W|th those provisions was not an

objective of our -audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an. opinion. ' The results of our .
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are requrred to be reportedl ‘
under Government Audlt/ng Standards - . :

‘ The Clty of Dunkrrk New York’s Response to Fmdmgs
o The Crty of Dunklrk New York s response to the frndlngs |dent1f|ed in our audlt is descrlbed in

. the accompanying schedule of findings and. questroned costs. The C|ty of Dunkirk, New York's
- response was not- subjected to the audltlng procedures applled in the audrt of the flnancral

. statements and accordlngly, we express no opmlon on |t

o Purpose of thls Report

\ The purpose of th|s report is soIer to descrlbe the scope of our testrng of lnternal control andk

L compllance and the results of that testing; and not to provide an opinion on the effectlveness of ) 2
“the entity’s internal control or on- compllance This report is .an rntegral part of an audlt

performed in accordance with *Government Aud/t/ng ‘Standards in- considering the entltys

o internal control and comphance Accordrngly, thls communlcatlon rs not suitable for any other‘ » kk L X
e ’purpose | ' S

QLWW# a«.«w LLP

k“fJohnson MackOW|ak&Assoc|ates LLP




JOHNSON MACKOWIAK
&ASSOCIATES L

. Certified Public' Accountants & Consultants : o o

\ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR. EACH MAJOR PROGRAM :
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

»May 22 2015

- Honorable Mayor
‘Members of City Councrl

" Treasurer .

_ City of Dunkirk
‘DUnkirk NY 14048

Report on Compllance for Each Major Federal Program

We - have audlted the C|ty of . Dunklrk New York’s compllance wnth the types of compllance*
requirements described- in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have
direct and material effect.on each of the City of Dunkirk, New York’s major federal programs for: -
the year ended December 31, 2014. The City of Dunkirk, New York’s major federal programs. -
are identified in the summary of audltors results sectlon of the accompanylng schedule of
1f|nd|ngs and questloned costs . : :

Management’s Respon5|b|I|ty

. Management is respon3|ble for compllance w1th the reqwrements of Iaws regulations, ‘
R contracts and grants appllcable to its federal programs \ : ‘ L

' 'Audltor s ResponSIblllty

o ‘Our responsnblhty is to express an opmlon on compllance for each of the Crty of Dunklrk s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the ‘standards. applicable to financial audits’ contained

in GovernmentAud/t/ng Standards, issued by the Comptroller ‘General of the United States;and B

‘OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards ‘and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain-
'reasonable assurance about whether noncomphance with the types of compllance requwements
referred to above that could have a direct and. ‘material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basns evidence about the City of Dunkirk, New
York's comphance with those" requrrements and performlng such other procedures as we ..
con5|dered necessary in the cwcumstances e
s _55-

70 East Main Street / Fredonia, New York 14063 / 716-‘67"2-47‘70,/ Fax 716-679-1512 / jma-cpas.com -




‘ ‘We bel|eve that our. audrt provrdes a reasonable ba3|s for our oplmon on compllance for each g
"major federal program. However our audit does not prov1de a Iegal determlnatlon of the City of
~Dunkirk’s compllance ‘ : : » . W

"’;‘Oplnlon on Each of the Major Federal Programs R

) \rln our. oplnlon the Clty of Dunklrk New York complled in aII matenal respects W|th the types of ,
compllance requirements. referred to above that could have a direct and’ materlal effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31 2014 : '
- Report on Internal Control Over Compllance

Management of the Crty of Dunklrk New York is. respon3|ble for. establlshmg and mamtamlng‘

- -effective internal ‘control over comphance with the. types of compllance reqwrements referred to
~above. In planning and performing.our audit of compliance, we considered the City of Dunkirk’s

‘internal control over compliance with the types of reqwrements that could have a direct and -

* material effect on each- -major federal’ program to determine the audttlng procedures that are
\ ,appropnate in the circumstances for’ the purpose - of expressing an opinion . on compliance for R
~each major federal- program and to test and- report on mternal control over compllance in
accordance with OMB. Circular A- 133, but not for the purpose of expressmg an opinion-on the
- effectiveness of internal control over comphance Accordlngly, we do-not express an opmlon on- .

. the effectlveness of the C|ty of Dunklrk New York’s mternal control over compllance '

‘A def/C/ency in /nterna/ contro/ over compllance exrsts when the deS|gn or operatlon of a control

- over compliance: does not allow management or employees in the normal course of performlng\

- their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,. noncomphance with a type of -
compllance requ;rement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal -
control over compllance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
~ compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
~of compliance - requirement of a federal program will ‘not be. prevented, or detected and
‘corrected, on a timely-basis. A srgn/flcant defICIency in /nternal control over. comp//ance is a
*.deﬂcnency, or a combination- of def|C|encles in internal control over compliance with a type of

‘ ,compllance requlrement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakress in

‘internal control over- complrance yet |mportant enough to merlt attentlon by those charged with
governance ‘ : v : R R t

,Our conSIderatron of mternal control over comphance was for the Ilmlted purpose descnbed in.

- the. first paragraph of this sectlon and was not. de5|gned to identify all deficiencies. in internal

control over compllance that mrght be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did

~ . not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compllance that we con3|der to be materlal
weaknesses However materlal weaknesses may eX|st that have not been |dent|f|ed

/-'f.The purpose of thls report on mternal control over compllance is: soIer to descnbe the scope of o
our testing of internal control over. compliance and the results of that testing based on the
’ reqwrements of OMB Clrcular A-133 Accordlngly, this report is not suntable for any other ‘

- purpose

9ﬁ““"J7"‘0bWW4k4#tguwaaﬁe)LLP

Johnson Mackowmk&Assomates LLP
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: CITY OF DUNKIRK NEW YORK ~
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
| - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2014 B

sl Séétionr'l.— S‘ummary'of—Auditors"R.es'u‘ltks‘, 7

, Fmancral Statements S

. Type ofaudltors report |ssued S L Unm'odi’fied

‘Intemal control—overflna‘nclal_reportirtg: .

Material weakne”‘sS(es) i:dentiﬁed'> EErE yes X no i

Slgnlflcant deﬂuency(res) |dent|f|ed
~  that are not consrdered to be e - o
o materlal Weakness(es)’? ...~ X yes . no

Noncomphance materlalto ,, N I
fman0|a| statements noted’? yes ... X.no .

- Federal Awards

Internal control overmajo‘rprogra'rﬁé L e
Matenalweakness(es) ldentlfred’P . yes X no

i Slgmflcant defrcrency(les) ldentlfled
" that are not considered tobe R |
matenal weakness(es) o o o yes X ono

Type ofaudltors report lssued on compllance ol |
- for major programs - ; ’t - Unmodified

Any audlt flndlngs dlsclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance

with section 510(2) 0 of Circular A-1337 yes X no

BT




- .- CITYOF DUNKIRK NEW YORK » B
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, contlnued’
e YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 o

- Identlflcatlon of major programs

CFDA Numbers o : fir | Name of I}:ederal Proquam or. Clus-ter U
‘14‘218 R o CDBG Entltlement Grant o
"Dollarthreshold used to drstrngwsh between TR
Type A and type B programs’? R $ 300,\000 SO
" Audrtee quahﬂed as Iow nsk audrte‘e? o S i‘ . yes X o

fSectlon II - Fmancral Statement Flndlngs S

: ’jAs of and for the year ended December 31 2014 the Crty of Dunklrk New York had one, e

B ‘ﬂndlng that was requ1red to be reported in accordance W|th GAGAS
‘ 14 01 Improvements in lnternal Controls Over Recelvable Reconcmatlons

4 o Cond/t/on Although the Crty records adJustments to its subsrdrary Iedgers for utrllty brlllng.' ;
~and general accounts recervable the adjustments are not consrstently and, trmely posted to-

B - the general Iedger

Cr/terla Internal controls should be in place that provrde reasonable assurance thatx‘-“‘
- adjustments are timely recorded in the general ledger to be sure the City is aware. of: all :
" réevenues to ‘which it is entitled and that. these revenues and recelvables are: correctly‘

o recorded in the general Iedger '

Effect Because of the lmproper documentatlon Iack of formal approval and untlmely '

“"adjustment of the City's utrlrty blllrng account correctrons needed to be made asa result of 5

N the Clty s annual audrt

’ Cause The Clty does not have establrshed pollcres and procedures requrrlng trmely .

o reconcrlements and adJustments of. lts accounts

o ,\,Recommendat/on The C|ty should establlsh a polrcy requiring formal documentatlon of all “

- utility account adjustments as well as requiring approval by the City Treasurer. An
established pohcy for - maklng ‘these adjustments will-'increase the |Ike|IhOOd that the
adjustments will be recorded ina trmely and correct manner S

P Managements Response Internal controls are establlshed to provrde assurance that

receivables account adjustments are recorded ina trmely manner. There are instances

O where an adjustment is mandated and may lapse from the month of the b|II|ng into the :

o next b|II|ng cycle AII adjustments requrre flnal approval by the Clty Treasurer The formal

. .58-




procedures establlshed were foIIowed explicitly to the letter until the Ioss of a full-tlme“; ‘

- ~employee in the Treasury Department Due to time constraints . and available staff and.
~work_ hours, timeliness was rmpacted by these adjustment procedures The Crty |s strII ,
mvestrgatmg alternatlves to correct the srtuatlon S :

| : Sectlon III - Federal Award Fmdmgs and Questloned Costs

As of and for the year ended December 31 2014 the Crty of Dunkrrk New York did not *
»have any frndrngs that were oonsrdered Federal Award Flndlngs and Questloned Costs




: ‘CITY OF DUNKIRK NEW YORK .
l SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
‘ : YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 '

.+ Therewere no’jp;ricr‘y'eiar‘AL'133 findings

-:",“ Subsequent Monltorlng R9|00l't |

a HUD recently completed a report on monltorlng of the Cltys CDBG Program Due

E “to the fact that monitoring findings pertalnlng to overall management and financial

"overS|ght have been discovered in the past, it was determined that the review |
would focus on ‘the City Citizen Part|C|pat|on Plan (CPP) housmg rehabrlrtatron )
desrgn and admlnlstratlve cost ‘ l ; o I
”The flndlngs from thrs report are as follows

'Flndlng Number 1 The C|ty needs to formally adopt a current Cltlzen i

- j;PartIC|pat|on Plan that is compliant wlth regulatlons and shared wrth the/ :
o ;pubhc and communlty stakeholders : SR L

Cond/tlon Durlng testmg it was determlned that whlle actlons taken to satlsfy HUD; -

| requwements have been largely met, the Crty must: address inconsistencies and
- establish a clear Citizen Partrcrpatron Plan and practlces to ensure |t |s consrstent T

[ '-falr and complrantly lmplemented

"‘"“Recommendatron s recommended that the Clty of Dunklrk staff should‘, N

\ |mplement an ofﬂcral Crtrzen Partrcrpatron Plan The plan should specrflcally B
- |nclude , B

A deflnltlon of predomrnately low moderate rncome nelghborhoods =
B o  Identification of City CDBG target areas’ g | :

e How the CPP can be accessed by the publlc L

e Clear crrterla of amendments/substantlal amendments R

'[‘f,The draft plan should be submrtted to HUD for review and the CPP must be: madeT

~ available to the publrc for comment Finally; the plan should formally be: adopted

. by the City'and be mcorporated ln the Cltys Communlty Development pollcres and n
: ]procedures SURERR TR . , Lo "

.




CITY OF DUNKIRK NEW YORK o Ty
SCHEDULE OF STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED
: S YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2014

. NYSDOT
I L D S ~ Contract - A
PROGRAMTITLE - -~~~ _ Number = Expendltures

‘ ",_,NeWYo‘rk‘,Sta’teAﬁerialAi,d o NA 88 816'_‘7

= Consohdated nghway Improvement

Program (CHIPS) . NA . s5ass7

_* TOTAL STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED ~ $ 650,273

. "Th:e_ac‘:comba'nyingnotes are an integral 'par:t‘,ofthi's schedule.. . - i

el




. CITY OF DUNKIRK NEW YORK .
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF STATE TRANSPORTATION B
- ASSISTANCE EXPENDED :
: YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 ‘

| ”G‘ENERAL‘} i

»; ;The accompanylng Schedule of State Transportatron ASS|stance Expended of C|ty of Dunk|rk

“ ~ New York; presents:the activity of all flnanC|aI assxstance programs prowded by the New York . .
State Department of Transportatlon e SeA : L ‘

' BASIS \OF ACCOUNTING : .’

- The accompanynng Schedule of State Transportatlon Expended is presented usmg the mod|f|ed
accrual baS|s of accountlng ’ : > . :

‘The amounts reported |n the Schedule of State Transportatlon assmtance expended generally -

 were obtalned from the approprlate financial reports: for the appllcable program and periods. The T _
; amounts reported in the financial reports are prepared from records maintained for each program,

',These records are perlodlcally reconcnled to the general Iedger WhICh is. the source of the financial - -
statements : L -

R INDVIRECT:C;OSTS'. v

' There are no indirect costs‘aSSocirated‘rWith these pro‘gram’s.* o

. MATCHING‘ COSTs .

: Matchlng costs le the Cltys share of certaln program costs are not mcluded in. the reported
: expend|tures S : L S , :

AMOUNTS PAID TO SUBRECIPIENTS

' ’ryThere were no amounts»pald to subreclpents.f o
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~ JOHNSON, MACKOWIAK -
& ASSOCIATES, LLP

Certified Public Accountants & Con'sultants .

h INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND CONTROLS OVER
'STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

~ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUD/T/NG STANDARDS :

May 22, 201'5'

HonorabIe Mayor

‘Members of the City Councn

~ Treasurer S
City of Dunklrk New York 14048 -

‘Compllanc ‘

We have audlted the complrance of the City. of Dunklrk New York wrth the types. of complrance 1

requirements described in Part 43 of the New York State Codrfrcatlon of Rules and regulations

(NYCRR) that are applicable to each state transportation assistance program tested for the year

- ~énded December 31, 2014. The programs tested are identified in the summary of audit results- .

section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the .
- requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each program tested is the '
' responS|b|I|ty of the City of Dunkirk, New York’s: management Our responS|b|I|ty is. to express’
an: oplnton on the City of Dunklrk New York s comphance based on our: audlt

- We oonducted our audrt of oompllance in aocordance with. generally accepted audltlng
standards; the ‘standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing .
,Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Part 43 of NYCRR.
Those standards and Part 43 require that we plan and perform the audlt to obtain reasonable -

assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of complrance requrrements referredto

above, that: could have a direct and material effect on the state transportation assistance

- programs, tested, has occurred. An audit includes examinirig, on a'test basis, evidence about -
the City of Dunklrk New York’s compliance with those requirements and performlng such other -
procedures -as we considered . necessary ‘in the circumstances., We believe that our audit.
provides a reasonable basis for ouropinion. Our. audlt does not provrde a Iegal determlnatlon on
the Clty of Dunklrk New Yorks compllance with those reqmrements : : .

In our oplnlon the Crty of Dunklrk New York complled in all material respects W|th the -
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
L of its state transportatlon aSS|stance programs tested for the year ended December 31 2014

K Internal Control Over Compllance

The management of the City of Dunklrk New York is. respon5|ble for estabhshlng and
maintaining effective internal control over compllance with the requirements of laws, regulations, :
,oontracts and grants applloable to state transportatlon aSS|stance programs In: plannlng and )

.63- L e
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performlng our audlt we conS|dered the Clty of Dunklrk New Yorks mternal control overf‘\
compliance with- requrrements that could have a direct - and material - effect on.state -
~ -transportation assistance programs to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
~expressing our opinion on- compllance and to test and report on the internal . control over'
: compllance in accordance with Part 43 of NYCRR but.not for the purpose of expressmg an

~opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compllance Accordlngly, we do not express

-.an opinion on the effectlveness of the Clty of Dunklrk New Yorks lnternal control over‘ e

i compllance

A def/C/ency in control over compl/ance eX|sts when the deS|gn or operatlon of a control over

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their: - o
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompllance with a type of compliance
" . requirement of a state transportatlon aSS|stance program on-a“ “timely - basis. A material -
. weakness in internal control over compliance isa deficiency, or combmatlon of deftcrencres |n} :
. interhal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possrblhty that material
‘noncomplrance with-'a. type of comphance requxrement of- a state’ transportat|on aSS|stance' ’

program wHI not be prevented or detected and corrected on a tlmely baSlS

, Our consrderatlon of the mternal control over, complrance was for the hmrted purpose descrlbedr o
“in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarlly identify all deficiencies in internal

. control - over compliance. that might - be ; deficiencies, significant defrmencres ‘or material

 weaknesses. We did ‘not. |dentlfy any deficiencies in internal control over compllance that we_f[

‘ consrder to be a’ materlal weakness as deflned above

—‘Schedule of State Transportatlon Assrstance Expended

"‘We have audlted the ﬂnanctal statements of the Ctty of Dunkrrk New York as. of and for the year -

- -ended December 31, 2014 and have issued our report-thereon dated May 22, 2015. Our audit

-~

was - performed for the purpose of “forming an opinion on- the Clty of . Dunkirk, New York's -

*  assistance- expended is presented for purposes of additional analysis as reqmred by Part 43 of

- financial statements taken as a’whole. The accompanylng ‘schedule of state transportatlon‘w .

o NYCRR, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such.information has been- o

subjected to the audltlng procedures applied in the audit of the financial'statements and inour

oplnlon is falrly stated m all materlal respects |n relation to the flnanC|aI statements- taken as a

~ whole. -

‘kThIS report is mtended solely for the mformatlon and use of the Crty of Dunklrk New Yorks
" management and the New York State Department of Transportatlon However thls report isa

< matter of publlc record and its dlstrlbutlon |s not ||m|ted

" WW# &Ie.ummu LLP

':Johnson MaCKOWIak&Assocrates LLP |
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CITY OF DUNKIRK NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2014

T fjsumméry‘of A,udit Restxlts: L

) l‘nternal c0ntrol o'v,er state transportation‘ ‘assis"tance expended: ,

k~~' Materlal weakness(es) |dent|f|ed
Reportable condition(s): ldentlfled that are not
conS|dered to be materral weakness(es) S

*‘Type of audltors report lssued on comphance
o for programs tested v

‘Idehtif’ication .of State Transportation*Asvsjsta\hcye ProgramsT ested:

 Name

L Co\nsdli:date'd Highwayllmprovement Prbgrarjt " “
| ‘Complié’n‘eefFin‘dingsahd.‘:‘Que's.tiened\Cos’ts: ‘

" No matters wererep'ort,eldr. L

"‘ - 65 -
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CITY OF DUNKlRK NEW YORK .

o SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
. FOR STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED -
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2014 T o

~ The City of Dunkirk, New York did not have any prior year findings.




